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FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND REPORTING

AB SKF is publishing the following financial reports during 1993:
Report on 1992 operations ......................................................................... February 25
Annual Report...................................................................................................... April 7
Report on first quarter....................................................................................... April 28
Report on first six months.............................................................................. August 11
Report on first nine months ......................................................................... October 26

The above reports are available in Swedish and English.
In addition to these reports, an annual report, Form 20-F, is produced for the

Securities and Exchange Commission, U.S.A.
The Annual Report and Report on first six months will be sent directly to

shareholders who have advised the Securities Register Centre (VPC AB) that
they wish to receive them. All the reports can also be ordered from AB SKF,
Group Public Affairs, S– 415 50 Göteborg, Sweden.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting will be held at SKF Kristinedal, Byfogdegatan 4,
Göteborg, at 3.30 p.m. on Wednesday April 28, 1993.

In order to participate in the meeting, shareholders must be recorded in the
shareholders’ register maintained by the Securities Register Centre (VPC AB) by
Friday April 16, and must notify the Company before noon Friday April 23, of
their intention to attend (AB SKF, Group Legal, S– 415 50 Göteborg, Sweden,
tel. +46-31-37 26 52), giving details of name, address, telephone and shareholding.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors proposes that no dividend be paid based on the financial
year 1992.

This annual report is a translation of the Swedish original.
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Our pictorial theme
Quality and Leadership characterize our pictorial theme this year. 

This year's photographs are intended to portray some of the Group’s investments undertaken in 1992,
aimed at strengthening our leadership and sharpening our competitive edge in the world markets. These
investments sometimes take a more visible form, for instance where innovation, the environment and
manufacturing processes are concerned. At other times, however, they are less obvious to the eye, such as
research and development, quality improvement and personnel training.
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The SKF Group

SKF is the world’s leading company in the rolling bearings industry. The Company’s
share of the world market, excluding China and the former Comecon countries, is
approximately 20 percent, making it twice as large as its nearest competitor. 

Wherever there is rotation, there is a need for some form of bearing. The function
of a rolling bearing is to eliminate or reduce the friction between a fixed and a moving
surface, and to carry a load. The life of a rolling bearing shall be compatible with the
life of the application in which it is installed. Since the use of rolling bearings is a
cost-effective solution, they are found in all types of engines, machines and wheels.

A seal is a product that separates a machine component from the outside world,
either by preventing penetration by foreign particles, or by ensuring that there is no
leakage out.

Rolling bearings and seals constitute the Group’s core business.
SKF’s policy is to provide a full range of rolling bearings, to ensure that it is always

able to offer the best solution to a customer’s problem, regardless of the type of
bearing required. Group policy also includes maintaining such a geographic presence
— either through its own sales companies, or through authorized distributors — that
SKF is always within reach of the customer.

By concentrating the Group’s resources on the core business, SKF is aiming to
further enhance its leading position in this area.

SKF 1992 IN BRIEF

• Several new car transactions strengthened SKF’s position in the European and U.S.
automotive markets.

• Deliveries commenced of SKF’s new Hub-bearing unit 3E, equipped with
integrated ABS sensor.

• The decision was taken to establish a new distribution center to serve the whole of
Europe. The center will be built during 1993.

• Production commenced at SKF’s new plant in Malaysia.

• Successful placement in the international capital market of ECU-denominated
convertible bonds corresponding to SEK 1 000 million.

• The CTT Tools division was sold to Sandvik AB.

• SKF was elected General Motors’ Supplier of the Year, an award granted for good
service, total quality and competitiveness.

1992 1991
Net sales, SEK m 26 649 26 302
Loss after financial income and expense, SEK m – 1 777 – 221
Loss per share, before extraordinary items, SEK – 13.20 – 10.40
Dividends per share, SEK –* 4.25
Number of employees registered at December 31 45 151 52 469

* The Board of Directors proposes that no dividend be paid based on the financial year 1992
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The President and Group Chief Executive’s comments

The engineering industry continues
to be marked by the economic
recession.  In Europe, we are now

entering our fourth consecutive reces-
sionary year. Production volumes have
been falling constantly. Only during the
years between the First and Second
World Wars is it possible to find a simi-
larly prolonged recession.

At present, it is difficult to believe that
Europe will experience any real eco-
nomic upswing during 1993. All of SKF’s
major customer segments are indicating
continuing reductions in sales and pro-
duction. The more favorable business
climate in the U.S. will not be sufficient
to provide any impetus to the European
market during 1993. Accordingly, busi-
ness conditions will be determined by
European consumer behavior, which is
not yet reflecting any renewed purchas-
ing propensity.

Competition has intensified. It is natu-
ral that the struggle for customer orders
should gain in intensity as the recession
progresses. The message emanating
from the number of loss-making compa-
nies in the bearings industry is unequivo-

cal — not all companies have the finan-
cial resources to resist the pressure. A
number will be forced to leave the
industry, either completely or in part. 

QUALITY AND SERVICE

The battle for customer orders is not just
a question of price. Quality and service
are playing an increasingly important
role when customers choose their sup-
pliers. Price, quality and service are all
key areas, none of which is static.
Constantly changing conditions, all lead-
ing toward intensified competition, can
be expected. In this process, the pro-
ducer/supplier is constantly subject to
new challenges, in most areas of the
company’s operations.

It is in such a climate, that we are con-
tinuing to develop SKF, in order to
create a structure and cost levels that are
compatible with customer demands.
During the past two years, both our
focus and our operating methods have
undergone radical changes. We are con-
tinuing to implement action programs,
which will also affect the Group during
1993. The tangible results of these pro-
grams will be reduced costs and shorter
decision-making channels.

A competitive cost level is a pre-
requisite for a competitive price level.
In short, this requires a well-developed
manufacturing technology, utilized
efficiently in a smoothly functioning
production flow. Some call this “lean
production”. We have called our own
system the Channel concept. This has
resulted in and continues to lead to sig-
nificant reductions in costs and through-
put times. These are positive results.
The system also facilitates the increas-
ingly efficient utilization of Group
plants, which is in turn leading to excess
capacity. The current business climate is
accentuating this effect. As a result, SKF
has been forced to close not only indi-
vidual production channels, but also
complete plants. Since such measures
are highly costly in the short term, they
had a serious impact on our earnings in
1992. However, in the long term, the
measures will strengthen SKF consider-
ably. 

MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY

Eventually, demand for more advanced
manufacturing technology will result in
the elimination of those competitors
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who lack the requisite financial or tech-
nological resources. Technology is a liv-
ing science and is subject to constant
refinement and change. SKF places con-
siderable emphasis on the development
of manufacturing technology, since the
further strengthening of our market
leadership is one of our guiding prin-
ciples. Also during the recession, we are
continuing to earmark resources for
technological development. 

The quality concept is becoming
increasingly pronounced, attracting
deserved attention at virtually every
level of society. This is a favorable devel-
opment for SKF, which is consistently
recognized as one of the most quality-
conscious companies. Quality does not
only relate to measurable factors; it also
has to do with lifestyle and ethics. A
company’s quality awareness is reflected
in the term “total quality.” Quality
efforts are the concern of all employees
in a company. 

During the current recession, we have
intensified our quality efforts and stiff-
ened the demands on the organization in
our internal competitive quality pro-
grams. The benchmarks we apply inter-
nally are based on the requirements of
our most demanding customers, as well
as on the ISO system. At SKF, maintain-
ing a high level of quality awareness and
quality development activity is assigned
high priority even during a recession.
The slightest detraction from our ambi-
tions would be extremely hazardous in
the long term.

CUSTOMER RECOGNITION

For us, service not only involves meeting
the delivery requirements of a customer;
it also embraces factors that make it
easier for the customer to work with us
— at all levels. Service starts at the
switchboard and continues through con-
tacts with our salespeople, technicians,
materials-handling employees, order
processors, delivery departments and
costing engineers. Quite simply, all
employees who engage in direct or
indirect contacts with customers.

At present and in the foreseeable
future, price, quality and service are
SKF’s main dynamic forces in the
Company’s efforts to strengthen and
develop its leadership in the bearings
industry. Accordingly, it is extremely
stimulating when the successful results

of these dynamic forces are recognized
by our customers. The most recent
example of such recognition was
General Motors’ decision to name SKF
as its “Supplier of the Year” in 1992,
with principal reference to our achieve-
ments in the field of quality, service and
competitiveness. We received this award
in the conviction that it was just one step
in the development and strengthening of
our market leadership.

I have now described three of our
principal dynamic forces. These have
been the main stimuli during the imple-
mentation of the strategy we adopted
during the summer of 1990, when we
first foresaw the recession. The aim of
the strategy is to streamline the Group,
to ensure that in the future SKF will be
able to derive profitability even from
today’s low volumes, and that according-
ly, significantly better earnings perfor-
mance will be recorded when the econo-
my recovers.

By the end of 1993, 14 000 employees
will have left the Group since 1990.
During the initial stages, shop-floor
employees accounted for most of the
reductions. As the recession progressed,
administrative employees and members
of Group staffs have been affected, as a
part of efforts to reduce fixed costs.

We have continued to reduce our
inventories. At the same time as the
market has contracted by approximately
20 percent in terms of volume, SKF has
reduced its inventories by SEK
1 670 million.

In conclusion, I would like to say that
I am convinced that with the restructur-
ing measures we announced in
December 1992, and with the help of
our competent, loyal and hard-working
employees, SKF will emerge from the
current recession in a much stronger
condition.
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The year 1992 was difficult for
SKF. Group sales continued to
decline as a result of the deepen-

ing recession.
As the year progressed, the expected

turning point for a recovery was contin-
ually postponed. This applied particu-
larly to Europe, where business condi-
tions deteriorated even further.

The American economy showed a dif-
ferent and more positive trend. Business
conditions recovered, weakly at first, but
developing sufficiently satisfactorily that
good growth figures could be shown
towards year-end.

The negative trend in business condi-
tions meant that the SKF Group, with
60 percent of its sales in the European
market, continued to give high priority
to adjusting operations to reduced
market demand. The number of
employees decreased and the rate of
production was below that of sales for
most of the year.

The adjustment measures led to con-
tinued intensive efforts to reduce costs
within all areas of operations. Rational-
ization of the Group’s manufacturing
and distribution structures continued

through the year aimed at achieving an
optimal utilization of resources and a
reduction in the amount of capital tied
up in these operations. Simultaneously,
work was implemented on a continuous
basis to achieve quality improvements.
The quality theme is a central aspect of
SKF’s activities and extends to all areas
of the business.

FOCUS ON CORE BUSINESS

The Group’s strategy is to increase focus
on the core business, rolling bearings
and seals, and during the year this led to
a sharper definition of both the Group’s
core business operations and its port-
folio business operations. SKF defines
portfolio business as those activities
within the Group which are not part of
its core business, such as textile machin-
ery components, airframe components,
fastening systems and linear products. In
several instances, these are leaders
within their individual areas of oper-
ation.

In combination with the decline in
demand, the successful productivity pro-
grams in progress within the Group have
resulted in SKF currently being in pos-



5

Board of Directors’ Report

session of more machine capacity and
factory areas than it needs. Accordingly,
an adjustment to the new situation must
be made.

In order to carry out the necessary
structural and rationalization measures
during 1993 and the first six months of
1994, an allocation of SEK 1.1 billion
was made during 1992. The number of
employees will be reduced by an addi-
tional 5 000 persons, of whom 4 000 will
leave the Group during 1993.

DOWNWARD TREND CONTINUES
IN EUROPE

Business conditions in the European
market declined steadily and accelerated
downwards towards the end of the year.
Germany was affected particularly heav-
ily by this trend. Demand in the con-
sumer and capital goods areas weakened
and industrial production decreased in
all SKF’s major European markets, com-
pared with 1991. As a result of the lower
production volumes, the rate of indus-
trial investment declined.

SKF’s customers decreased their own
production in 1992. This applied to vir-
tually all categories and included car and
truck manufacturers, electric motor
manufacturers, producers of white goods
and machinery manufacturers. The cuts
in production led to reduced demand for
rolling bearings, fastening systems and
other SKF products that are included as

components in customers’ end products.
SKF’s deliveries are directly related to

the sales and consequent production op-
portunities that exist for its customers.
Industrial distributors and agents main-
tained their inventories at low levels as a
result of the high costs arising from
spiraling European interest rates.

The recession in Europe has, since the
1989/90 peak of the boom period, caused
a drop in volumes for SKF of approxi-
mately 20 percent. The decline is repre-
sentative of the industry as a whole and
the subsequent severe competition is
applying increasing pressure on price
levels. 

STRONG IN NORTH AMERICA

For the second consecutive year, SKF
improved both sales and earnings levels
in the North American market for roll-
ing bearings and seals. SKF’s develop-
ment was stronger than the general
trend in this region.

The oil seals company, Chicago
Rawhide (CR), which was acquired by
SKF in 1990, is fully integrated within
the Group and constitutes a successful
and profitable part of North American
operations.

POSITIVE DEVELOPMENT

In Southeast Asia, Africa, the Middle
East and Latin America, all of which
constitute geographically large regions
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but which are of limited significance in
terms of the consumption of rolling
bearings and other SKF products, the
Group developed positively. Sales in
these markets increased in tough compe-
tition with other bearings manufactur-
ers. Competition intensified as a result
of the downturn in the Japanese econ-
omy, which led to the Japanese bearings
industry attempting to offset the decline
in domestic demand by applying
increased pressure to markets in
Southeast Asia in particular.

The two most important markets in
South America, Argentina and Brazil,
developed favorably, which benefited
SKF operations.

LOW PRODUCTION LEVEL

The measures to adjust operations to the
economic downturn, which were intro-
duced as early as autumn 1990, con-
tinued throughout 1991 and 1992. Most
of the Group’s manufacturing and sales
companies were affected. 

The forceful cut-back in production
during the second half of 1990 and
throughout 1991 mainly affected directly
production-related personnel. During
1992, savings measures focused on fixed
costs within administration and staff
functions.

The rate of production in the Group’s
plants at the beginning of 1992 was
lower than that of sales. During the

early part of the year, the rate increased
to meet an expected improvement in
sales during 1993 but slowed again later.
At year-end, the production rate was
still below that of sales.

Accordingly, the Group’s inventories
continued to decrease during the year,
despite the decline in sales. The depreci-
ation of the Swedish krona in October
1992, led to an increase of inventories,
translated into Swedish kronor, in the
1992 balance sheet of approximately
SEK 1 200 m, to SEK 9 435 m (9 426).
Had the krona not been depreciated,
inventories would have amounted to
approximately SEK 8 235 m. Calculated
as a percentage of sales, inventories
accounted for 35.4 percent, compared
with 32.1 percent at year-end 1991. With
unchanged exchange rate of the krona,
the corresponding proportion would
have been approximately 32 percent.

NEW DISTRIBUTION STRUCTURE

The trend toward European integration
is enabling SKF to further improve its
service to customers and reduce the
amount of tied-up capital, while simulta-
neously decreasing materials-handling
costs through the establishment of a new
distribution center to serve the whole of
Europe.

Construction work on the new distri-
bution center, which will be located in
Tongeren, some 100 km east of Brussels,
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is starting in spring 1993. With the com-
pletion of this project, the number of
European inventory points will have
been reduced from the current level of
24 to just five, consisting of the Tongeren
facility and four other international
warehouses. The number of deliveries
dispatched directly to customers from
SKF plants will increase substantially.

CTT TOOLS

During 1992, SKF’s tools operations,
CTT Tools (CTT), were sold to Sandvik
AB. The transaction was formally imple-
mented at year-end 1992, when all of the
shares in CTT were transferred to
Sandvik AB. At that time, SKF had
acquired its German partner’s entire
20 percent holding in CTT. 

As payment for the shares in CTT,
Sandvik will make a directed share issue
to SKF, whereby SKF will receive
1 042 500 C shares in Sandvik AB. In
addition, Sandvik assumed loans in
CTT totaling approximately SEK
1 400 m.

Following the 1996 Annual General
Meeting of Sandvik AB shareholders,
the C shares will be converted to B
shares. C shares do not carry any entitle-
ment to dividends.

CTT’s operations were included in the
SKF Group throughout the 1992 fiscal
year and are included in the Group’s
consolidated income statement for 1992.
CTT was not, however, included in the
1992 consolidated balance sheet.

WEAK YEAR FOR STEEL

Ovako Steel was included in the SKF
Group as a wholly owned subsidiary
throughout 1992. The year was charac-
terized by an extensive program of
change both in terms of structure and
operating focus. At the same time, the
company experienced a sharp weaken-
ing in demand for its products and
intense pressure on prices. The trend for
Ovako Steel reflected the situation for
the whole of the European steel industry
during the year.

GROUP RESULT

The Group’s loss after financial income
and expense increased SEK 1 556 m,
from SEK –221 m to SEK –1 777 m.
This included the restructuring reserve
of SEK 1.1 billion. Group sales totaled
SEK 26 649 m during the year, com-
pared with SEK 26 302 m in 1991.

A major reason for the largely
unchanged level of sales is the fact that
Ovako Steel was fully included in the
Group accounts from January 1, 1992,
which, however, had a significantly
adverse effect on Group earnings.

Ovako Steel’s external sales amounted
to SEK 2 277 m and their loss after
financial income and expense was SEK
–442 m. This means that sales of the
Group’s products, excluding Ovako
Steel, decreased SEK 1 930 m in 1992,
down by 7 percent compared with 1991.

The SKF Group’s operating loss, after
depreciation according to plan of SEK
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1 296 m (1 077), amounted to SEK
–1 185 m (–56). Net financial items were
SEK –592 m (–165). The increase in
financial expenses is attributable in part
to a higher degree of borrowing as a
result of taking over Ovako and in part
to exchange losses on SKF’s convertible
bonds.

Of the Group’s loss after financial
income and expense, SEK –1 777 m
(–221), bearings and seals accounted for
SEK –1 264 m (–135), tools for SEK
–117 m (–103) and special steels for SEK
–442 m.

The net of current taxes and decrease
in deferred taxes resulted in a net tax
income of SEK 280 m (–66). Minority
interests amounted to SEK –7 m (–17).

The Group’s loss after taxes for 1992
was SEK –1 497 m (–1 194). Net extra-
ordinary income and expense, such as
the sale of CTT Tools and restructuring
within Ovako, amounted to SEK
–214 m. Loss per share before and after
extraordinary items was SEK –13.20
(–10.40) and SEK –15.10 (–10.40),
respectively. The return on capital
employed was –3.5 percent (3.0) and on
shareholders’ equity –15.3 percent
(–10.3).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCING

A substantial portion of the Group’s
borrowings are coordinated or arranged
by the Group’s internal bank, SKF
International AB. During 1992, activ-
ities focused on extending the maturities
of the loan portfolio. Borrowings of
slightly more than SEK 2 000 m with
maturities of 5-10 years, primarily in the
international capital markets, were real-
ized. The funds borrowed were used to
repay loans with shorter maturities. The
Group’s outstanding short-term loans
relate primarily to the financing of work-
ing capital for subsidiaries. As a result of
new borrowings, the Group’s amortiza-
tions over the next few years are rela-
tively limited.

As part of the Group’s new borrow-
ings, ten-year convertible bonds in an
amount of ECU 145 m (SEK 1 075 m)
were issued. The total number of new
shares that can be issued on full conver-
sion is 8 499 965. The convertible bonds
are listed on the London Stock
Exchange.

During the latter part of the year, SKF
renegotiated or extended a large portion
of the long-term credit agreements used
as standby facilities and liquidity
reserves. At year-end, the Parent
Company’s unutilized committed lines of
credit from banks amounted to SEK
3 138 m. The Group’s total unutilized
credit facilities of the same type
amounted to SEK 7 337 m.

The Group’s total financial assets
amounted to SEK 4 315 m at year-end.
Of this amount, SEK 3 075 m consisted
of short-term investments. 

The Group’s total loans at year-end
were SEK 9 775 m, while net indebted-
ness, defined as total loans less total
financial assets, amounted to SEK
5 460 m.

The basis for the Group’s risk man-
agement activities is to keep the average
interest-rate period related to borrow-
ings between one and two years.

CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE
RISKS

The SKF Group, with operations in
most of the world’s countries and an
extensive cross-border flow of both
goods and capital, is exposed to risks
deriving from changes in the financial
markets. The risks occur in payment
flows and in assets and liabilities. The
management of these risks is coordi-
nated by the Group’s Treasury function
and the internal bank.

As a result of the Group’s geographi-
cal spread, the risks are not concen-
trated to any individual currency. 

The risk scenario is complex, however,
since SKF conducts its manufacturing
operations in some 20 countries and its
products are sold all over the world.
Changes in exchange rates that give
advantages to a manufacturing unit in
one country often result in disadvan-
tages for SKF companies in other coun-
tries.

The total flow of currencies amounts
to SEK 12-13 billion on an annual basis.
More than half of the flow and the risk
can be matched or netted. The remain-
ing amount, corresponding to net
exports mainly from Sweden, Italy and
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France, is hedged through transactions
in the foreign exchange market.

Due to the increased uncertainty in
the currency market, SKF will operate
with shorter hedging periods than pre-
viously. Formerly, the hedging horizon
was six to twelve months, which is why
the full effects of the Swedish currency
depreciation will not be felt until
towards the end of 1993. 

The currency exposure relating to the
translation of net investments in foreign
subsidiaries is to a certain extent
matched through financing or forward
exchange contracts in corresponding
currencies. As the Swedish krona weak-
ens, the Group’s total assets consequent-
ly increase relatively more than
shareholders’ equity.

CASH FLOW AND
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SKF Group operations caused a nega-
tive cash flow before financing and
investments of SEK 717 m (+2 475), fol-
lowing an increase in working capital of
SEK 662 m (–1 402).

Capital expenditures in property,
plant and equipment during 1992 totaled
SEK 1 121 m (1 778) and related primar-
ily to normal rationalization and mod-
ernization measures at the Group’s
plants.

R&D during the year totaled SEK
473 m (538), representing about 1.8 per-
cent (2.0) of sales for the year.

PERSONNEL

The average number of employees at
work was 46 672 (45 285), of whom 6 871
(4 500) were located in Sweden (see
Note 28 “Average number of employees
at work, wages and salaries”). The num-
ber of employees registered as of
December 31, 1992, was 45 151 (52 469).
During the year, a total of 7 500 persons
left the Group, of whom 3 751 were
employed by CTT Tools.

PARENT COMPANY

The operations of the Parent Company
consist of the management staff func-
tions for the Group and the divisions.
The Parent Company’s income after
financial income and expense was SEK
726 m (579). The operating loss before
financial items totaled SEK –80 m (–71).

Dividend income from subsidiaries
amounted to SEK 808 m (545), and from
other companies to SEK 0 m (0). The
net of interest income and financial
exchange rate differences was SEK –2 m
(105). Extraordinary items were SEK
–7 m (–91), which included Group and
shareholder contributions.

The reported income for the year,
after provisions, was SEK 824 m (488).

The average number of employees at
work was 181 (206).
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Retained earnings Kronor 1 899 340 813
Reported income for the year Kronor 824 817 163
Total surplus Kronor 2 724 157 976

The Board of Directors and Managing Director recommend 
that a dividend of 0.00 Swedish kronor per share

be paid to the shareholders Kronor 0
that the balance be carried forward Kronor 2 724 157 976

Kronor 2 724 157 976

The results of operations and the financial position of the Parent Company and
the Group 1992 are given in the income statements and in the balance sheets
together with related notes.

Göteborg, February 25, 1993

Proposed distribution of surplus

We have examined the annual report, the consolidated financial statements, the
accounting records and the administration of the board of directors and the
managing director for the year 1992. Our examination was made in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards.

PARENT COMPANY

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Swedish
Companies’ Act.

We recommend that the general meeting of the shareholders resolve to
adopt the income statement and the balance sheet, distribute the surplus in
accordance with the proposal in the board of directors’ report, and discharge
the board of directors and the managing director from liability for their
administration of the company for the year 1992.

GROUP

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Swedish Companies’ Act.

We recommend that the general meeting of the shareholders resolve to
adopt the consolidated income statement and the consolidated balance sheet.

Göteborg, March 5, 1993

Auditors’ report

Anders Scharp
Göran Johansson
Gösta Bystedt
Giovanni Mario Rossignolo
Claes Dahlbäck
Anders Sjöberg

Alf Åkerman
Mauritz Sahlin
Per-Olof Eriksson
Inger Stenström
Sune Carlsson
Lars Ove Håkansson

Olof Herolf
Authorized
Public Accountant,
Price Waterhouse

Åke Gustavsson Nils Brehmer
Authorized
Public Accountant,
Öhrlings Reveko AB

The Audit Report refers to the entire Annual Report as required under Swedish law, which includes the complete
accounts of the Parent Company.
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Consolidated income statements

Millions of Swedish kronor 1992 1991 1990

Net sales 26 649 26 302 27 766
Other operating income 148 238 164

Cost of goods sold – 20 198 – 19 181 – 19 011
Selling, administrative and

technical expenses note 2 – 6 488 – 6 338 – 6 053
Depreciation according to plan note 3 – 1 296 – 1 077 – 951

Operating loss/income – 1 185 – 56 1 915

Financial income and expense - net note 4 – 592 – 165 – 165

Loss/income after financial income 
and expense – 1 777 – 221 1 750

Taxes note 5 280 – 66 – 719
Equity in loss of Associated

Companies note 13 – – 907 – 133

Loss/income after taxes – 1 497 – 1 194 898

Extraordinary income note 6 65 – 145
Extraordinary expense note 7 – 279 – – 37
Taxes on extraordinary income

and expense note 5 – – 34
Minority interest 7 17 – 26

Net loss/income – 1 704 – 1 177 1 014
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Millions of Swedish kronor 1992 1991 1990

ASSETS

Current assets
Current financial assets note  8 3 075 3 823 3 812
Trade accounts receivable note  9 5 332 4 973 4 976
Inventories note 10 9 435 9 426 9 954
Other current assets note 11 1 050 1 126 931

18 892 19 348 19 673

Capital assets
Long-term financial assets note 12 1 240 1 038 1 077
Investments note 13 411 132 760
Property, plant and equipment note 14 11 227 11 327 9 057
Other capital assets note 15 944 832 737

13 822 13 329 11 631

Total assets 32 714 32 677 31 304

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Short-term liabilities
Short-term loans note 16 3 258 4 978 3 469
Trade accounts payable note 17 1 915 2 306 2 324
Short-term tax liabilities note 5 74 90 408
Other short-term liabilities note 18 5 130 4 175 3 375

10 377 11 549 9 576

Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans note 19 5 244 4 443 3 769
Pensions note 20 5 045 4 548 3 955
Long-term tax liabilities note 5 1 360 1 435 1 395
Other long-term liabilities note 21 372 206 214
Convertible bonds note 23 1 273 – –

13 294 10 632 9 333

Minority interest 113 172 240

Shareholders’ equity note 24
Restricted equity
Share capital 1 412 1 412 1 412
Restricted reserves 4 064 5 466 5 112
Unrestricted equity
Unrestricted reserves 5 158 4 623 4 617
Net loss/income – 1 704 – 1 177 1 014

8 930 10 324 12 155

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 32 714 32 677 31 304

Assets pledged note 25 1 994 1 917 1 765
Contingent liabilities note 26 807 811 1 391

Consolidated balance sheets
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Consolidated statements of cash flow 

Millions of Swedish kronor 1992 1991 1990

Operating loss/income – 1 185 – 56 1 915
Depreciation and goodwill amortization 1 344 1 129 986
Extraordinary income and expense – net – 214 – 108

Changes in working capital:
Inventories – 853 1 510 – 1 572
Trade accounts receivable – 664 511 – 35
Trade accounts payable – 293 – 336 207
Other current assets and liabilities – net 1 148 – 283 53

Cash flow from operations – 717 2 475 1 662

Additions to property, plant and equipment – 1 121 – 1 778 – 1 589
Additions to property, plant and equipment

through acquisition of companies – 7 – 111 – 1 068
Sales of property, plant and equipment 539 115 67
Sale of net operating assets in CTT Tools 1 873 – –
Acquisition of net operating assets in Ovako – – 2 459 –

Cash flow after investments 567 – 1 758 – 928

Financial  income and expense – net – 592 – 165 – 165
Cash dividends, AB SKF shareholders – 480 – 480 – 459
Proceeds from minority shareholder 

in CTT Tools – – 99
Taxes 189 – 343 – 918
Change in loans 354 2 183 3 117
Change in other long-term assets 

and liabilities – net – 40 582 – 338
Translation adjustments – 746 – 8 – 13

Change in current financial assets – 748 11 395
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Amounts in millions of Swedish kronor unless otherwise stated

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

General
The consolidated financial statements include the Parent
Company AB SKF and all companies in which AB SKF,
directly or indirectly, owns shares representing more
than 50 percent of the voting rights, with the exception
of CTT Tools (see note 6). AB SKF and its subsidiaries
are referred to as “the SKF Group” or “the Group”.

Investments in companies, representing 20 to 50
percent of the voting rights, and where the SKF Group
has a significant influence, are referred to as “Associated
Companies”.

All companies within the Group apply the accounting
rules as stated in the “SKF Accounting and Financial
Reporting Manuals”. These rules are primarily based on
generally accepted accounting principles in Sweden
(Swedish GAAP). In general, the rules applied by the
SKF Group are also in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States
(U.S. GAAP). Significant differences between Swedish
GAAP and U.S. GAAP are described in note 29.

Consolidation – subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using
the purchase method. The consolidated shareholders’
equity includes the Parent Company’s equity and that
part of the equity in subsidiaries which has arisen after
the acquisition.

The difference between the cost of acquiring the
shares in a subsidiary and that subsidiary’s shareholder’s
equity at the time of acquisition, adjusted for revalua-
tions of assets and liabilities, is accounted for:

— as goodwill in the consolidated balance sheet, if the
cost of acquiring the subsidiary is higher than the
shareholder’s equity, or

— as a decrease in the value of acquired capital assets, if
the cost of acquiring the subsidiary is lower than the
shareholder’s equity.

Intercompany accounts, transactions and unrealized
profits have been eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1991 and
1990 financial statements to conform to the 1992 presen-
tation.

In the 1991 Annual Report, Ovako was accounted for
as an Associated Company. In the 1992 Annual Report,
the balance sheet and related footnotes for 1991 have
been restated to show Ovako as a wholly owned
subsidiary at the end of 1991.

Accounting for investments in Associated Companies
Investments in Associated Companies are accounted for
in accordance with the equity method. The value of the
investments is equal to the Group’s share of
shareholders’ equity in these companies, determined in
accordance with the accounting rules of the Group. The
Group’s share of these companies’ results is based on
their results after taxes.

Translation of foreign financial statements
The current rate method is used for translating the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into Swedish
kronor. Under this method, all assets and liabilities are
translated into Swedish kronor at year-end exchange
rates, whereas income and expense items are translated
at average exchange rates. The translation adjustments
that arise are transferred directly to shareholders’ equity.

For the translation of financial statements of subsidiar-
ies operating in highly inflationary economies, the Group
applies the monetary/non-monetary method (MNM-
method). Monetary balance sheet items are translated at
year-end exchange rates and non-monetary balance
sheet items, as well as related income and expense items,
are translated at rates in effect at the time of acquisition
(historical rates). Other income and expense items are
translated at average exchange rates. Translation
differences that arise are treated either as operational or
financial items in the income statement.

Exchange rates
In translating the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries operating in the countries shown below, the following
exchange rates have been used:

Average rate Year-end rate

Currency 1992 1991 1990 1992 1991 1990

Belgium 100 BEF 18.06 17.68 17.70 21.34 17.75 18.14
Canada 1 CAD 4.80 5.28 5.08 5.54 4.78 4.90
France 1 FRF 1.10 1.07 1.08 1.28 1.07 1.10
Germany 1 DEM 3.71 3.64 3.65 4.37 3.66 3.75
Great Britain 1 GBP 10.21 10.65 10.50 10.67 10.39 10.81
India 100 INR 19.50 27.01 33.01 22.49 21.30 30.80
Italy 100 ITL 0.47 0.49 0.49 0.48 0.48 0.50
Japan 100 JPY 4.63 4.50 4.08 5.65 4.41 4.20
Netherlands 1 NLG 3.30 3.23 3.24 3.89 3.24 3.32
Spain 100 ESB 5.68 5.81 5.77 6.15 5.73 5.86
Switzerland 1 CHF 4.15 4.22 4.27 4.82 4.11 4.39
USA 1 USD 5.81 6.06 5.93 7.04 5.54 5.69
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Foreign currency transactions
Receivables and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at year-end exchange rates.
The resulting gains and losses are classified as either
operational or financial items in the income statement.

Forward exchange contracts
Forward exchange contracts, which serve as hedges of
the flow of goods and services between countries, have
been treated such that trade accounts receivables and
payables have been valued at the applicable forward
rates. In those cases where receivables and payables
have not yet arisen, valuation of the forward exchange
contracts has not been made.

Gains and losses on forward exchange contracts and
loans, serving as hedges of net investments in foreign
subsidiaries, are excluded from the income statement.
These gains and losses, less current and deferred income
taxes, are transferred directly to shareholders’ equity,
thereby offsetting gains and losses arising on the
translation of the financial statements of the foreign
subsidiaries. For these forward exchange contracts, the
interest difference between currencies is evenly allocated
over the life of the contract.

Forward exchange contracts which are not considered
hedges of firm commitments have been valued at market
value. Gains and losses are included in financial income
and expense.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-
out basis) or market (net realizable value). Net realiz-
able value is defined as the lower of current replacement
cost or market value less selling cost. Cost includes
material, labor and manufacturing overheads.

Capital and intangible assets
Depreciation according to plan is calculated based on
the cost of the asset. In some countries, legal revalua-
tions are made in addition to cost, and depreciation is
then based on the revalued amounts.

The rates of depreciation are based on the estimated
economic lives of the assets, generally 33 years for
buildings, 10-17 years for machines and 4-5 years for
tools, office equipment and vehicles.

Goodwill is amortized over 10 years on a straight-line
basis, except for goodwill related to significant strategic
acquisitions, which is amortized over a maximum of
20 years. Amortization of goodwill is included in
administrative expenses.

Patents and similar rights are stated at cost and are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their legal lives.

Leases
Leases which transfer virtually all benefits and risks
incident to the ownership of the property to the Group
(capital leases), are capitalized and accounted for as
assets and incurrence of obligations. Rentals for other
leases (operating leases) are charged against income
over the lease term.

Research and development
Research and development expenditures are charged
against income as incurred.

Income taxes
All companies within the SKF Group compute current
income taxes in accordance with the tax rules and regu-
lations of the countries where the income is taxable.

Deferred income taxes are calculated in accordance
with the deferred method. Comprehensive allocation is
applied and the net deferred tax liability or asset, as
reported in the balance sheet, is the cumulative sum of
deferred income taxes charged and credited to the
income statement over the years. Current year losses
and tax loss carry-forwards have been considered in
calculating deferred income taxes.

Provisions have been made in the consolidated
financial statements for estimated taxes on earnings of
subsidiaries expected to be remitted in the following
year, but not for tax liabilities which may arise on
distribution of the remaining unrestricted earnings,
as they are expected to be reinvested.

Changes in accounting principles in 1993
In December 1990, the U.S. Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” (FAS
106). FAS 106 requires that the cost of health insurance
and other similar benefits provided to employees after
their retirement be expensed during an employee’s
active service life. Application of FAS 106 is required
from January 1, 1993 for U.S. plans and from 1995 for
non-U.S. plans. For the Group’s U.S. subsidiaries, the
after-tax effect of FAS 106 is estimated to be approxi-
mately one hundred million U.S. dollars. The cumulative
effect of this change in accounting principle will be
reflected as a retroactive restatement to the opening
balance of shareholders’ equity.

In February 1992, the U.S. Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued FAS 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes”. FAS 109 requires that deferred taxes be
calculated on differences between the book and tax
bases of assets and liabilities in accordance with the
liability method which, among other things, means that
changes in tax rates affect the year’s results.
Additionally, it allows the recognition of loss carry-
forwards if they, more likely than not, can be utilized.
The implementation of FAS 109 is required from
January 1, 1993. The cumulative effect of this change in
accounting principle will be reflected as  a retroactive
restatement to the opening balance of shareholders’
equity. The Group expects that this change will initially
have a positive effect on the Group’s equity due to the
significant loss carry-forwards. However, any required
valuation reserve on these has not yet been estimated.
The effect of tax rate changes is not expected to be
material.

The cumulative effect of the above adjustments will be
accounted for in conjunction with the 1993 year-end
closing. The expenses of FAS 106 for 1993 will, however,
be accounted for periodically during the year.
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Definitions of key figures
The majority of the subsidiaries within the SKF Group
report their results of operations and financial position
ten times a year. The key figures presented in the Annual
Report have been calculated using average values based
on these interim reports. Therefore, the calculation of
these key figures using the year-end values presented,
may give slightly different results.

1. Portion of risk-bearing capital
Shareholders’ equity plus minority interest and deferred
taxes, as a percentage of total assets at year-end.

2. Solvency
Shareholders’ equity plus minority interest, as a percent-
age of total assets at year-end.

3. Return on total assets
Operating loss/income plus financial income, as a
percentage of average total assets.

4. Return on capital employed
Operating loss/income plus financial income, as a
percentage of average total assets less the average of
non-interest bearing liabilities.

5. Return on shareholders’ equity
Loss/income after taxes, as a percentage of average
shareholders’ equity.

6. Operating margin
Operating loss/income plus financial income, as a
percentage of net sales.

7. Turnover of total assets
Net sales in relation to average total assets.

8. Earnings per share in Swedish kronor
Loss/income after taxes divided by average number of
shares.

9. Yield
Dividend as a percentage of share price at year-end.

10. P/E ratio
Share price at year-end divided by earnings per share.

11. Average number of employees at work
Total number of working hours of all employees, divided
by the normal total working time during the year.

NOTE 2 – RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenditures charged against
income were 473 in 1992, 538 in 1991 and 534 in 1990.
Additionally, the Group enters into research and devel-
opment contracts to develop or produce prototypes of
various products. Expenses under these contracts were
20, 19 and 20 in 1992, 1991 and 1990 respectively, and
have been fully reimbursed.

NOTE 3 – DEPRECIATION ACCORDING TO PLAN

1992 1991 1990  

Land improvements 7 6 6
Buildings 128 114 102
Machinery and equipment 1 089 901 805
Leases 28 45 29
Leaseholds 1 2 1
Revaluations 43 9 8

1 296 1 077 951

Depreciation related to assets used in manufacturing
amounted to 1 125 in 1992, 912 in 1991 and 798 in 1990.
The remainder relates to assets used in selling,
administrative and technical areas.

NOTE 4 – FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

1992 1991 1990

Dividend income 2 10 11
Interest income 546 685 600
Interest expense – 896 – 863 – 820
Financial exchange 

gains and losses – 244 – 97 – 4
Financial translation adjust-

ments (MNM-method) – 100 48
– 592 – 165 – 165

The net interest cost component of the pension cost,
included in the operating loss/income, amounted to 311
in 1992, 49 in 1991 and 368 in 1990.

Financial exchange gains and losses for 1992 include a
loss of approximately 160 caused by the translation of the
Parent Company’s convertible ECU bonds (see note 23
– Convertible bonds).

Financial translation adjustments relate to subsidiaries
operating in highly inflationary economies, where the
MNM-method is applied. In 1992, corresponding transla-
tion adjustments were allocated to interest income and
interest expense.

NOTE 5 – TAXES 

1992 1991 1990

Taxes on loss/income after
financial income and expense

current taxes – 134 – 148 – 580
deferred taxes 414 82 – 139

280 – 66 – 719
Taxes on extraordinary items – – 34

280 – 66 – 685
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Tax liabilities and assets consisted of the following:

1992 1991 1990 

Income taxes currently payable 74 109 230
Deferred tax liabilities 

– short-term – – 19 178
Short-term tax liabilities 74 90 408

Deferred tax liabilities 
– long-term 1 360 1 435 1 395

1 434 1 525 1 803

Deferred tax assets (see note 11) 110 – –

Deferred taxes result mainly from accelerated deprecia-
tion claimed for tax purposes by certain subsidiaries. 

The utilization of tax loss carry-forwards reduced taxes
on income by 31 in 1992, 53 in 1991 and 230 in 1990. Tax
loss carry-backs reduced taxes on income by 1 in 1992, 34
in 1991 and by 10 in 1990.

Corporate income tax
The corporate nominal income tax rate in Sweden was
30 percent in 1992 and 1991 and 40 percent in 1990.

The effective tax rate on loss/income after financial
income and expense and extraordinary items, but before
equity in loss of Associated Companies and minority
interest, was 14 percent in 1992, –30 percent in 1991 and
37 percent in 1990. The main reasons for the differences
between the statutory tax rates and the effective tax rates
are outlined below (in percent):

1992 1991 1990 

Statutory tax rate in Sweden 30 30 40
Difference between 

statutory tax rate in
Sweden and foreign 
subsidiaries’ weighted
statutory tax rate 4 – 3 4

Permanent differences 39 33 – 7
Utilization of tax loss 

carry-forwards 2 24 – 14
Utilization of loss carry-back – 15 –
Losses in subsidiaries, 

not currently deductible – 60 – 165 13
Tax credits – 38 – 3
Other – 1 – 2 4

Effective consolidated tax rate 14 – 30 37
Effective consolidated tax rate

excluding extraordinary items 14 – 30 41

Tax loss carry-forwards
The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries, principally
in Sweden, the United Kingdom and Spain, at December
31, 1992 had tax loss carry-forwards amounting to 5 015
(1 510 in 1991 and 742 in 1990) that may be utilized to
reduce future taxable income. Such tax loss carry-
forwards expire as follows:

Year of expiration
1993 63
1994 95
1995 217
1996 237
1997 65
1998 and thereafter 4 338

In addition to these tax loss carry-forwards, the Group
has unutilized deductions amounting to 1 507 (755 in
1991 and 555 in 1990), which have reduced deferred tax
liabilities. These deductions can be used to reduce future
taxable income, but since they have already reduced the
deferred tax liabilities, the use of the deductions will not
reduce the total tax charge for the SKF Group.

Additionally, the Parent Company at December 31,
1992, had unutilized tax deductions on dividends paid
which expire through 2011. Under Swedish tax law, these
are deductible in determining the base for the corporate
income tax. An amount of 262 (306 in 1991 and 347 in
1990) may be deducted in determining taxable income
during the periods through December 31, 2011. 

NOTE 6 – EXTRAORDINARY INCOME

1992 1991 1990 

Gain on sale of CTT Tools 65 – –
Gain on sale of real estate 

in Göteborg – – 145
65 – 145

As per December 31, 1992, the Group sold its tool
division, CTT Tools, to Sandvik AB. As a result, CTT
Tools’ results of operations for 1992 is included in the
consolidated income statement. However, its financial
position is excluded from the consolidated balance sheet.

The purchase price consists of a directed issue of
1 042 500 C shares in Sandvik AB which will be paid after
the Annual General Meeting of Sandvik AB in 1993.
Depending on the earnings of CTT Tools during 1994-
1995, a supplementary payment may also arise. The C
shares carry no rights to participate in dividends for the
fiscal years 1992-1995, but are otherwise equal to B
shares and will be converted to such shares after the 1996
Annual General Meeting of Sandvik AB. The C shares
are valued at 313 which is based on the share price of the
Sandvik B share, taking into consideration the restriction
mentioned above.
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The pro forma financial information below estimates
the Group’s consolidated income statement and balance
sheet information for 1992 and 1991 as it might have
been, had the sale of CTT Tools been consummated at
the beginning of 1991. CTT Tools was founded in
December 1990. The information is based on an assumed
capital gain of 65. Interest effects have not been
considered.

1992 1991 

Sales 24 943 24 358
Operating loss – 1 195 – 81
Loss after financial income 

and expense – 1 660 – 114

Current assets 18 892 19 014
Capital assets 13 822 12 625

Short-term liabilities 10 377 11 105
Long-term liabilities 13 294 10 043
Shareholders’ equity 8 930 10 389

NOTE 7 – EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSE

1992 1991 1990 

Write-off of operations in 
former Yugoslavia – 52 – –

Discontinued portfolio
businesses – 227 – – 37

– 279 – – 37

NOTE 8 – CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

1992 1991 1990 

Cash and bank accounts 1 070 823 742
Debt securities 508 640 459
Promissory notes – 5 7
Government securities 384 420 645
Other short-term 

financial receivables 1 113 1 935 1 959
3 075 3 823 3 812

Cash and bank accounts include time deposits of 714 for
1992, 144 for 1991 and 286 for 1990.

NOTE 9 – TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

1992 1991 1990 

Acceptances receivable 587 563 572
Accounts receivable 5 002 4 617 4 573

5 589 5 180 5 145

Allowance for doubtful
accounts – 257 – 207 – 169

5 332 4 973 4 976

Provision for doubtful accounts charged against income
amounted to 88 in 1992, 66 in 1991 and 45 in 1990.

NOTE 10 – INVENTORIES

Inventories at December 31, net of allowance for
obsolescence, consists of the following:

1992 1991 1990 

Finished goods 6 146 5 860 6 401
Work in process 2 117 2 302 2 217
Raw materials 589 706 835
Supplies 583 558 501

9 435 9 426 9 954

NOTE 11 – OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

1992 1991 1990 

Advances to suppliers 50 66 114
Prepaid expenses 334 189 185
Accrued income 141 353 218
Deferred tax asset, net 110 – –
Other current receivables 415 518 414

1 050 1 126 931

NOTE 12 – LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

1992 1991 1990

Long-term financial receivables 1 222 1 021 1 069
Debt securities 18 17 8

1 240 1 038 1 077

NOTE 13 – INVESTMENTS

Investments include shares in Sandvik AB of 313 in 1992.
In 1990, investments in Associated Companies amounted
to 567, of which 566 was related to “Old Ovako”.

“Equity in loss of Associated Companies” related to
Ovako is comprised of the following:

1991 1990 

Equity in net loss of Old Ovako for 
the period January–November 
1991 and 1990 respectively – 229 – 133

Operating loss for New Ovako, 
December 1991 – 133

Estimated expenses for the shutdown 
of Ovako Profiler AB in Luleå – 500

Other, net – 45
– 907 – 133

A complete list of Group investments (in Swedish) can be obtained
from AB SKF, Group Public Affairs, S–415 50 Göteborg, Sweden.
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NOTE 14 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1992 1991 1990

Acqui- Accumu- Acqui- Accumu- Acqui- Accumu-
sition lated sition lated sition lated 

cost depr. cost depr. cost depr.

Land 390 8 470 2 386 2
Land improvements 278 180 247 165 210 133
Buildings 4 559 2 118 4 267 1 836 3 675 1 622
Machinery and equipment 18 211 10 372 16 990 9 195 13 815 7 734
Capital leases 238 135 281 165 256 129
Leaseholds 9 6 7 4 31 10
Revaluations 578 246 578 213 459 217

24 263 13 065 22 840 11 580 18 832 9 847
Net 11 198 11 260 8 985
Advances to suppliers 29 67 72

11 227 11 327 9 057

Capital leases consist of the following:

1992 1991 1990

Land 5 7 7
Buildings 91 71 73
Machinery and equipment 142 203 176

238 281 256

NOTE 15 – OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS

1992 1991 1990

Acqui- Accumu- Acqui- Accumu- Acqui- Accumu-
sition lated sition lated sition lated 

cost amort. cost amort. cost amort.

Goodwill 900 155 801 110 711 83
Patents and similar rights 19 15 16 11 47 37

919 170 817 121 758 120
Net 749 696 638
Deferred charges 195 136 99

944 832 737

NOTE 16 - SHORT-TERM LOANS

1992 1991 1990

Bank loans 2 430 3 365 2 680
Commercial papers – 1 004 408
Other short-term loans 302 130 62

2 732 4 499 3 150

Current portion of long-term 
loans 526 479 319

3 258 4 978 3 469

The maximum month-end amount of short-term loans
outstanding, excluding the current portion of long-term
loans, was 3 933 in 1992, 4 449 in 1991 and 4 013 in 1990.
The average month-end amount outstanding during the
year was 2 950 in 1992, 4 146 in 1991 and 3 001 in 1990.
The weighted average interest rate was 10.3 percent, 9.6
percent and 11.6 percent in 1992, 1991 and 1990,
respectively, and was 9.4 percent at December 31, 1992.

Average amounts outstanding and weighted average
interest rates have been computed based on the amounts
outstanding at the end of each month and related
interest expense.

At December 31, 1992 the SKF Group maintained
committed lines of credit at financial institutions in
certain countries in which it operates. The unused
portion of short-term lines of credit amounted to 2 487.
The entire amount was available in currencies other than
Swedish kronor. Certain of the revolving credit facilities
require an overdraft facility fee ranging from 0.3 percent
to 1.5 percent of the full amount of the facility, and other
facilities require a commitment fee ranging from 0.06
percent to 1.5 percent of the unused portion of the
facility.

At December 31, 1992, the Group had unutilized long-
term lines of credit of 4 850 expiring in 1994 to 1998.
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NOTE 17 – TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

1992 1991 1990 

Acceptances payable 321 354 239
Accounts payable 1 594 1 952 2 085

1 915 2 306 2 324

NOTE 18 – OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES

Other short-term liabilities include accrued vacation pay
of 444, 408 and 433 at December 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990,
respectively, and accrued social charges (including
payroll taxes) of 579, 466 and 468 at December 31, 1992,
1991 and 1990, respectively.

NOTE 19 – LONG-TERM LOANS

Long-term loans at the end of the year, excluding the
current portion, are:

1992 1991 1990

Debentures (maturing from 
1994 to 2005) bearing interest 
from 7.9 to 14.0 percent * 980 194 289

Bank loans (maturing from 
1994 to 2007) bearing interest 
from 2.1 to 20.8 percent * 3 233 3 939 3 168

Other loans (maturing from
1994 to 2010) bearing interest
from 1.9 to 27.0 percent * 1 031 310 312

5 244 4 443 3 769

* December 31, 1992

The current portion of long-term loans is included in
short-term loans (see note 16). 

Maturities of long-term loans outstanding at December
31, 1992 were as follows:

1994 451
1995 1 451
1996 587
1997 1 495
1998 95
1999 and thereafter 1 165

5 244

The terms of certain loan agreements contain various
restrictions, relating principally to the further pledging of
fixed assets, the amounts of additional loans and payment
of intercompany dividends.

Of the long-term loans, amounts totaling 976, 711 and
1 020 were secured at December 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990,
respectively.

No material differences between carrying amounts
and fair values of long-term loans existed at December
31, 1992. The fair values of long-term loans were
estimated using discounted cash flows and applying the
interest rate valid on the closing day. 

NOTE 20 – PENSIONS

Charges against income in 1992, 1991 and 1990 for
pension and similar plans were 472, 621 and 547, which
include a net interest cost of 341, 49 and 368 respectively.
The interest income portion of this net interest cost
represents actual return on assets in pension funds,
whereas the interest expense portion has been calculated
on the average of the opening and closing balances of the
pension obligation. Interest rates used vary by country,
and were 8.1, 12.5 and 12.1 percent in 1992, 1991 and
1990 respectively for indexed Swedish pensions and 3.5
percent in 1992, 1991 and 1990 for fixed Swedish
pensions. Interest rates of 8.1, 8.7 and 8.9 percent were
used in 1992, 1991 and 1990 respectively for the German
companies, which represented 61 percent of the Group’s
total pension obligation in 1992 and 66 percent in 1991
and 1990.

NOTE 21 – OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

1992 1991 1990 

Liabilities for capital leases 82 87 78
Other 290 119 136

372 206 214

NOTE 22 – LEASES

Future minimum rental commitments at December 31,
1992 for capital leases and non-cancellable (within one
year) operating leases were as follows:

Capital Operating
leases leases  

1993 87 316
1994 23 240
1995 15 193
1996 11 164
1997 9 147
1998 and thereafter 54 1 376

199 2 436

Less: Amount representing interest
and executory costs –  39

Present value of minimum lease
payments under capital leases 160

Less: Current portion –  78

Long-term portion 82

Operating leases also include the leases for those
portions of the Parent Company’s real estate in
Göteborg, which in 1990, 1989 and 1987 were sold and
leased back.

Net rental expense related to operating leases was 283
in 1992, 319 in 1991 and 226 in 1990. Contingent rentals
and sublease income were not significant in any of the
years presented.
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NOTE 23 – CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In May 1992, AB SKF issued zero coupon convertible
bonds amounting to 145 million ECU after a discount of
8.75 percent. At full conversion 8 499 965 B shares will be
issued. 

Conversion can be requested from July 30, 1992 up to
July 26, 2002. The holder is entitled to request redemp-
tion on July 26, 1997. On or after that date the bonds are
redeemable at any time at the option of AB SKF, as a
whole or in part. If no conversion or redemption takes
place, the loan at maturity amounts to 341 million ECU.

In October 1984, the Parent Company issued convert-
ible debentures in the amount of 237 to employees of the
SKF Group in Sweden. During 1989 and 1990, the deben-
tures, with a nominal value of 190 Swedish kronor, were
converted into B shares, or redeemed. The conversion
price was 47.50 Swedish kronor, after the 4:1 split of the
Company’s shares during 1989. During 1989 and 1990,
4 999 556 B shares were issued through conversion. 

NOTE 24 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital
The share capital at December 31, 1992 consisted of the
following shares (nominal value SEK 12.50 per share):

Number of shares
authorized Aggregate 

and outstanding nominal value

A shares 49 256 332 616
B shares 63 743 224 796

112 999 556 1 412

The designations A and B indicate the voting power of
the shares. An A share has one vote, a B share one-
thousandth of one vote.

In 1992, the Annual General Meeting abolished the
clause restricting the acquisition of shares by foreign
nationals and other controlled persons.

Option certificates
In 1990, AB SKF issued 11 000 000 option certificates.
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one new
B share at the price of 190 Swedish kronor.  These
certificates become exercisable beginning July 1, 1993
through June 30, 1995.

Restricted reserves
In accordance with statutory requirements in Sweden
and certain other countries in which the SKF Group
operates, the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
maintain restricted reserves which are not available for
distribution as dividends. 

The Swedish Companies Act requires that 10 percent
of net income be transferred to the legal reserve (part of
restricted reserves) until the legal reserve amounts to 20
percent of the share capital. Premiums paid on new share
issues must also be transferred to the legal reserve.

In countries where legal revaluations of assets are
made, the revaluation surplus must be transferred to
legal reserves.

Tax laws in Sweden and certain other countries permit
allocations to reserves that are deductible for tax
purposes. To a certain extent, companies can thus
allocate income so that it remains in the business without
being taxed immediately. In the balance sheet the
accumulated value of these allocations, less the related
deferred tax liabilities, is shown under restricted reserves.
Differences between statutory reporting and reporting
for Group purposes are also treated as restricted
reserves. 

Unrestricted equity
Unrestricted earnings include earnings distributable by
the Parent Company and those net earnings that may be
remitted from subsidiaries to the Parent Company within
one year. The amount has been reduced by accumulated
losses in other subsidiaries. In determining the remittable
amounts, consideration has been given to legal and
exchange restrictions, but not to the financial position of
the remitting subsidiaries.

Changes in shareholders’ equity

Re- Unre-
Share stricted stricted

capital reserves equity Total

Opening balance 1990-01-01 1 350 5 093 5 001 11 444

Cash dividends – 459 – 459
Conversion of debentures 62 174 236
Net income 1 014 1 014
Transfer between reserves – 44 44 –
Translation adjustments and 

revaluations – 111 31 – 80
Closing balance 1990-12-31 1 412 5 112 5 631 12 155

Cash dividends – 480 – 480
Net loss –1 177 –1 177
Transfer between reserves 388 – 388 –
Translation adjustments and 

revaluations – 34 – 140 – 174
Closing balance 1991-12-31 1 412 5 466 3 446 10 324

Cash dividends – 480 – 480
Net loss –1 704 –1 704
Transfer between reserves –2 131 2 131 –
Translation adjustments and 

revaluations 729 61 790
Closing balance 1992-12-31 1 412 4 064 3 454 8 930
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As described in note 1, translation adjustments arising
from the application of the current rate method are
transferred directly to shareholders’ equity. Changes in
cumulative translation adjustments, which are included in
both restricted and unrestricted reserves, are as follows:

1992 1991 1990 

Balance at beginning of year – 587 –  292 –  212
Aggregate translation

adjustments 1 505 –  352 –  74
Losses/gains from hedges

(net of taxes) of investments
in foreign subsidiaries – 727 57 –  6

Balance at end of year 191 –  587 –  292

NOTE 25 – ASSETS PLEDGED

The following assets have been pledged to secure loans:

1992 1991 1990

Mortgages on real estate 1 249 1 180 1 036
Chattel mortgages 466 181 95
Other mortgages 250 544 605
Total mortgages 1 965 1 905 1 736
Government securities 26 12 27
Other assets pledged 3 0 2

1 994 1 917 1 765

Mortgages are stated at the nominal value of the
mortgage deeds and other assets are stated at net book
value. The pledged assets secured obligations of 976 at
December 31, 1992, 711 in 1991 and 1 020 in 1990.

NOTE 26 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

1992 1991 1990 

Acceptances receivable 
discounted 66 86 107

Unrecognized vested and 
unvested retirement benefits 466 413 461

Other guarantees and 
contingent liabilities 275 312 823

807 811 1 391

NOTE 27 – GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

External sales for the Group per geographical area were
as follows:

1992 1991 1990

Sweden 1 463 1 003 1 176
Europe (excluding Sweden) 14 802 14 826 16 323
United States and Canada 5 832 5 620 5 530
Other countries 4 552 4 853 4 737

26 649 26 302 27 766

The Group’s identifiable assets (total assets, excluding
cash, bank accounts, short-term investments, inter-
company receivables and shareholdings, but before
consolidation eliminations), amounted at December 31,
1992 to 30 260 and to 29 424 in 1991 and 27 499 in 1990.
The geographical location of these assets were as follows:

1992 1991 1990

Sweden 3 876 4 616 2 658
Europe (excluding Sweden) 15 491 16 152 16 897
United States and Canada 6 256 5 129 4 342
Other countries 4 637 3 527 3 602

30 260 29 424 27 499

Dividends of 753 in 1992, 344 in 1991 and 1 040 in 1990
have been received by the Parent Company from foreign
subsidiaries.
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NOT 28 – AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT WORK, WAGES AND SALARIES

1992 1991 1990

Operations in Sweden
Number of work sites 23 18 16
Total average number of 

employees at work 6 871 4 500 4 996
Wages and salaries:

Boards and Managing Directors 17 18 18
Other employees 1 450 935 983
Total in Sweden 1 467 953 1 001

Operations abroad
Number of countries 57 50 49
Total average number of 

employees at work 39 801 40 785 44 309
Wages and salaries:

Boards and Managing Directors 101 115 99
Other employees 7 129 7 172 7 039
Total abroad 7 230 7 287 7 138

Total average number of 
employees at work 46 672 45 285 49 305

Total wages and salaries 8 697 8 240 8 139

Of the average number of employees at work in Sweden during 1992, 1 289 were women and 5 582 were men. The
corresponding figures for 1991 and 1990 were 784 women and 3 716 men, and 786 women and 4 210 men respectively.
Of the average number of employees at work abroad during 1992, 6 840 were women and 32 961 were men. The
corresponding figures for 1991 and 1990 were 7 190 women and 33 595 men, and 8 230 women and 36 079 men
respectively.

The companies in the countries below represent 79 percent in 1992 and 1991, and 78 percent in 1990, of the total number
of employees at work, and 86 percent in 1992, 1991 and 1990 of the total wages and salaries.

Average number of employees at work Total wages and salaries

1992 1991 1990 1992 1991 1990

Germany 9 153 9 728 10 237 2 388 2 373 2 232
Sweden 6 871 4 500 4 996 1 467 953 1 001
USA 6 440 6 570 7 125 1 206 1 244 1 188
Italy 5 850 5 961 6 882 1 158 1 236 1 276
France 4 620 4 682 4 342 838 807 736
Great Britain 2 130 2 326 2 766 331 372 399
Brazil 1 735 1 934 2 354 100 101 155

36 799 35 701 38 702 7 488 7 086 6 987

A complete specification of employees (in Swedish) can be obtained from AB SKF, Group Public Affairs, S–415 50 Göteborg, Sweden.
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U.S. GAAP

NOTE 29 – RECONCILIATION TO UNITED STATES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES 
Accounting policies of the SKF Group that differ signifi-
cantly from U.S. GAAP are as follows:

1. Deferred income taxes
Adjustments for deferred income taxes in the reconcilia-
tion to U.S. GAAP are attributable to the differences
described below.

2. Revaluation of assets
In certain countries, assets have been revalued at an
amount in excess of cost. U.S. GAAP does not permit
the revaluation of assets in the financial statements.

3. Capitalization of interest expense
In accordance with Swedish GAAP, the SKF Group has
not capitalized interest expense incurred in connection
with the financing of expenditures for construction of
property, plant and equipment. Such interest expense is
required to be capitalized in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.

4. Accounting for early termination benefits
The SKF Group has in previous years allocated the costs
for early termination benefits between early and normal
retirement for certain Group companies. U.S. GAAP
requires costs for early termination benefits to be
expensed in the year when the benefits are accepted by
the employees.

5. Gains on sale of real estate
During 1991, 1990 and 1989 the Group sold real estate in
Sweden which is partially leased back, or completely
leased back with the option to repurchase the property.
Gains recognized from these transactions are not
permitted to the same extent under U.S. GAAP.

6. Pensions
Periodic pension cost and liability is calculated by the
Group according to local laws and accounting principles.
Under U.S. GAAP, the periodic pension cost and liability
should be calculated according to the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employers’
Accounting for Pensions” (FAS 87).

The Group sponsors defined benefit plans in several
countries, principally Sweden, Germany, France, the
United States and Spain. The Swedish plan supplements
statutory pensions where benefits are established by
national organizations. The subsidiaries in France
sponsor a retirement indemnity plan in accordance with
French National Employer/Employee agreements. Plans
in Germany, Spain and the United States are designed to
supplement these countries’ social security pensions.
Only the U.S. plans are funded. Benefits are based on a
combination of age, salary and service and are available
to all employees meeting age, service and other
requirements.

The following tables summarize approximate
disclosures under FAS 87.  

Net periodic pension cost for the plans described above,
included in the Group’s approximate U.S. GAAP income
statement includes the following components:

1992 1991 1990

Service cost 110 107 105
Interest cost 462 415 378
Actual return on assets – 115 – 392 – 42
Other, net – 1 311 – 69
Net periodic pension cost 456 441 372

Assumptions used in the calculations:

1992 1991 1990

Discount rates 7-10% 7-10% 7-10 %
Rates of increase in 

compensation level 2-7% 2.5-7% 2.5-7 %
Investment return 11% 11% 8-11 %

The following table sets forth these plans’ funded status
and amounts recognized in the Group’s approximate U.S.
GAAP balance sheet:

1992 1991 1990

Actuarial present value of:
Vested benefit obligation 5 052 4 661 4 267

Accumulated benefit 
obligation 5 259 4 819 4 441

Projected benefit obligation 5 794 5 371 4 983

Plan assets at fair value – 1 877 – 1 835 – 1 486

Projected benefit obligation
in excess of plan assets 3 917 3 536 3 497

Unrecognized net loss 85 151 31

Unrecognized net obligation
at initial application – 527 – 616 – 673

Unrecognized prior                                           
service cost – 114 – 99 – 83

Adjustment required to
recognize minimum liability 414 421 566

Pension liability 3 775 3 393 3 338

Plan assets are invested primarily in securities and bonds.
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7. Forward exchange contracts
A forward exchange contract is, according to U.S.
GAAP, considered a hedge only when there is a firm
commitment. According to Swedish GAAP hedging of
expected transactions is permitted.

Contracts hedging expected transactions, not covered
by firm commitments, are accounted for according to
U.S. GAAP, as the difference between the agreed
forward rate and the market forward rate on the closing
day.

8. Statements of cash flow
The Group prepares the statements of cash flow in accor-
dance with Swedish GAAP, which requires a cash flow
statement differing from that required by the Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 95, “Statement of
Cash Flows” (FAS 95). Additional approximate dis-
closures if the Group were to comply with FAS 95 are as
follows:

1992 1991 1990 

Borrowings of long-term loans 2 686 421 1 892
Repayments of long-term loans 1 671 671 949
Additions to loans through 

acquisitions – 13 979
Cash interest paid 780 851 793
Cash taxes paid 252 195 820

Significant non-cash transactions are conversion of bonds
(see note 23), deferred tax provisions (see note 5), provi-
sions for pensions (see note 20), extraordinary income
(see note 6), extraordinary expense (see note 7), equity
in Associated Companies (see note 13) and minority
interest in income as disclosed in the income statement.

The depreciation of the Swedish krona against other
currencies which occurred in November 1992, caused a
non-cash increase in the Group’s balance sheet resulting
from the translation into the reporting currency, the
Swedish krona. The depreciation effect on total assets
was estimated to be an increase of approximately 3 900,
using October closing-day exchange rates as a basis. The
increases in inventories and loans as shown in the cash
flow statement, include a depreciation effect of approxi-
mately 1 200 and 975 respectively.

The Group considers current financial assets to be cash
and cash equivalents (see note 8).

9. Discontinued operations
According to U.S. GAAP the discontinuation of portfolio
businesses is not considered extraordinary, but should be
reported separately on the income statement.

1992 1991 1990 

Discontinued portfolio
businesses, net – 214 – 19

– 214 – 19

10. Off-balance sheet risk and concentrations of credit risk
The Group has a firm policy to hedge its exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, as well as
against unfavorable fluctuations in interest rates, through
many different strategies, including the use of various
financial instruments such as interest rate caps and floors,
foreign currency and interest rate swaps and forward
exchange contracts. At year-end these amounted to more
than 20 000. A significant majority of these contracts
involve the Swedish krona, German mark, U.S. dollar,
Italian lira and French franc.

The contracts are placed with several well-established
international financial institutions, therefore manage-
ment believes credit risk to be very low. The majority of
these contracts serve as hedges of net investments in
foreign subsidiaries and other commitments. The gains
and losses on these contracts would to a great extent be
offset by gains and losses resulting from the translation of
the foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements and other
foreign currency commitments.

Concentration of credit risk is limited, primarily
because the Group’s customer base consists of many
geographically and industrially diverse customers.
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11. Summary
The application of U.S. GAAP would have the following approximate effect on consolidated net loss/income, share-
holders’ equity and loss/earnings per share. 

1992 1991 1990

Net loss/income as reported in the consolidated 
income statements – 1 704 – 1 177 1 014

Items increasing/decreasing net loss/income:
Deferred income taxes 178 – 21 – 4
Depreciation on revaluation of assets 

including effect in connection with sale 46 15 11
Capitalization of interest expense – 6 – 4 – 12
Early termination benefits 18 – 6 – 10
Gains on sales of real estate 9 – 23 – 160
Pensions – 6 17 55
Forward exchange contracts – 488 82 –

Net decrease/increase in net loss/income – 249 60 – 120
Approximate net loss/income in accordance 

with U.S. GAAP – 1 953 – 1 117 894

1992 1991 1990

Shareholders’ equity as reported in the 
consolidated balance sheets 8 930 10 324 12 155

Items increasing/decreasing reported equity:
Deferred income taxes 167 – 11 10
Revaluation of assets – 297 – 333 – 233
Capitalization of interest expense 70 76 80
Early termination benefits – 13 – 31 – 25
Gains on sales of real estate – 642 – 652 – 629
Pensions 55 61 44
Forward exchange contracts – 406 82 –

Net decrease in reported shareholders’ equity – 1 066 – 808 – 753
Approximate shareholders’ equity in 

accordance with U.S. GAAP 7 864 9 516 11 402

1992 1991 1990

Loss/earnings per share, in Swedish kronor:
Loss/earnings from continuing operations – 15.65 – 10.35 5.90
Loss/earnings from discontinued operations – 1.90 – 0.15
Loss/earnings before extraordinary credit – 17.55 – 10.35 6.05
Extraordinary credit:

Income tax benefit from utilizing loss 
carry-forwards 0.25 0.45 1.85

Net loss/earnings per share in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP – 17.30 – 9.90 7.90

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 112 999 556 112 999 556 112 999 556
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The following is a summary comparing the reported consolidated balance sheets with the balance sheets after approxi-
mate adjustments to U.S. GAAP.

As reported in the consolidated Approximate amounts after adjustment
balance sheets to U.S. GAAP

1992 1991 1990 1992 1991 1990

Current financial assets 3 075 3 823 3 812 3 091 3 823 3 812
Inventories 9 435 9 426 9 954 9 435 9 426 9 953
Other current assets 6 382 6 099 5 907 6 244 6 180 5 907
Investments 411 132 760 406 127 756
Property, plant and equipment 11 227 11 327 9 057 11 023 11 095 8 959
Other capital assets 2 184 1 870 1 814 2 506 2 239 2 329
Total assets 32 714 32 677 31 304 32 705 32 890 31 716

Short-term loans 3 258 4 978 3 469 3 258 4 978 3 469
Other current liabilities 7 119 6 590 5 929 7 402 6 593 5 929
Long-term loans 6 517 4 443 3 769 7 178 5 112 4 443
Pensions 5 045 4 548 3 955 5 326 4 887 4 455
Other long-term liabilities 372 206 214 371 206 214
Deferred income taxes 1 360 1 416 1 573 1 193 1 426 1 564
Minority interest 113 172 240 113 172 240
Shareholders’ equity 8 930 10 324 12 155 7 864 9 516 11 402
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 32 714 32 677 31 304 32 705 32 890 31 716
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Parent Company

The following presents condensed financial statements for the Parent Company,
AB SKF. A complete annual report for AB SKF (in Swedish) can be obtained from
AB SKF, Group Public Affairs, S–415 50 Göteborg, Sweden.

Parent Company income statements

Millions of Swedish kronor 1992 1991 1990 

Operating loss/income – 80 – 71 32
Dividend income from subsidiaries 808 545 1 040
Income after financial income and expense 726 579 1 145
Extraordinary income and expense, net – 7 – 91 –  93
Taxes on extraordinary income and expense – – 33
Net income 719 488 1 085

Provisions 105 – 0 16
Reversal of deferred income taxes – – – 33
Reported income for the year 824 488 1 068

Parent Company balance sheets
Millions of Swedish kronor 1992 1991 1990

ASSETS
Current assets 1 459 1 655 1 602
Investments 6 592 4 284 3 913
Other capital assets 2 816 476   394
Total assets 10 867 6 415 5 909

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Short-term liabilities 2 488 1 535 1 066
Long-term liabilities 3 711 451 424
Special reserves 77 182 182

Shareholders’ equity
Restricted equity
Share capital 1 412 1 412 1 412
Legal reserves 455 455   453
Unrestricted equity
Unrestricted reserves 1 900 1 892 1 304
Reported income for the year 824 488   1 068

4 591 4 247 4 237

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 10 867 6 415 5 909

Assets pledged 1 1 –
Contingent liabilities 1 143 891 887

Analysis of changes in shareholders’ equity

1992 1991 1990

Share capital at beginning of year 1 412 1 412 1 350
Conversion of debentures – – 62
Share capital at end of year 1 412 1 412 1 412

Legal reserves at beginning of year 455 453 279
Conversion of debentures – –    174
Sale of bonus shares – 2 –
Legal reserves at end of year 455 455 453

Unrestricted equity at beginning of year 2 380 2 372 1 763
Cash dividends – 480 – 480 – 459
Reported income for the year 824 488 1 068
Unrestricted equity at end of year 2 724 2 380 2 372

Total shareholders’ equity at end of year 4 591 4 247 4 237



Bearings and seals

Demand for ball and roller bear-
ings continued to decline
throughout 1992. The market

contracted for the third consecutive
year, as a result of which the SKF
Group’s sales decreased approximately
7 percent. Since 1990, when the industry
started to decline, SKF’s sales have
decreased by SEK 3 900 m.

SHARP DECLINE IN EUROPE

In Europe, the decline was particularly
severe in the automotive market seg-
ment, which also includes the electrical
industry. This segment accounts for
about 30 percent of Group sales. The
term “collapse” is the most appropriate
description of trends in the automotive
segment during the second half of the
year. Most manufacturers reduced their
output and additional reductions in

volume are expected during 1993. A
decrease in the output of cars, trucks,
buses and other vehicles automatically
reduces demand for rolling bearings, a
trend that is affecting both SKF and all
of the world’s other manufacturers of
bearings.

The decline in the automotive seg-
ment reflects European consumers’ lack
of confidence in the immediate future.
Judging from experience, consumption
decreases and the level of saving
increases when consumers lack faith in
the future.

U.S. CONTINUES TO IMPROVE

For the second year in a row, SKF
improved its sales to customers in the
North American automotive industry.
During the year a Hub-bearing unit
production plant in Glasgow, Kentucky,

Bearings, seals and related products is the Group’s core business and accounted for
84 percent of total Group sales in 1992.

The product program includes a large variety of ball and roller bearings,
special bearings, seals, tools for mounting and dismounting of bearings, lubricants,
measuring and control instruments, technical consulting and training packages.

The manufacturing of these products is carried out at around 40 factories in 17
countries. The sales organization consists of a large number of wholly owned sales
companies and more than 7 000 industrial distributor outlets, and covers most
countries of the world.

Bearings
and seals
(SEK m) 1992 1991 1990

Net sales............. 22 690 24 347 26 476

Loss/income after 
financial income 
and expense....... –1 264 – 135 1 709

Additions to
property, plant 
and equipment .. 1 022 1 624 1 593

Average number 
of employees 
at work ............... 39 337 40 841 45 889
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Bearings and seals

was completed which will strengthen the
Group’s position in this market. Deliv-
eries from this plant will commence
during 1993.

The SKF Group’s share of the
American car market is increasing stead-
ily and the Group holds a strong posi-
tion in the heavy trucks sector with its
range of taper roller bearings.

NEW CAR TRANSACTIONS

SKF succeeded in negotiating a number
of new contracts during 1992, despite the
continuingly bleak conditions in the
European automotive segment.

In March 1993, Ford launched its new-
est car, the Ford Mondeo. This model
represents a major investment by Ford
and will be sold throughout the world.
SKF has signed an agreement with Ford,
making SKF the exclusive global suppli-
er of Hub-bearing units for the Mondeo.
In addition to Hub-bearing units, SKF
will deliver Mc Pherson strut bearings

and drive shaft bearing units to this glo-
bally oriented car. Deliveries com-
menced at the end of 1992. 

The first deliveries of Hub-bearing
units for Opel Vectra were also made at
the end of 1992. These Hub Unit 3E
Bearings have been equipped with inte-
grated ABS sensor (impulse wheel plus
electronic sensor and cable) which feed
the ABS (anti-block system) for the
brakes and TCS system (traction control
system) with all the necessary informa-
tion down to very low speeds.

In 1993 and for the first time ever, a
Japanese designed car, the Nissan Micra,
was named the European Car of the
Year. This car is produced in the United
Kingdom by Nissan, and is equipped
with SKF’s Hub-bearing units. Its engine
contains SKF belt tensioner units.

This means that SKF is the only bear-
ings manufacturer to have supplied com-
ponents to nine of the models elected
Car of the Year over the past ten years.

Ferrari also selected SKF Hub-
bearing units for its latest vehicle, the
Ferrari 512 TR. Ferrari now uses one
hundred percent SKF Hub-bearing units
for all its car production.

SKF’s strong position in the automo-
tive segment was also illustrated by the
fact that all of 1992’s major motor racing
competitions were won by cars equipped
with SKF bearings: Lancia won the
manufacturers’ category of the world
rally championships, Citroën won the
Paris-Moscow-Beijing rally, Peugeot
won at Le Mans and Williams Renault
won the Formula One championship. In
addition, the Toyota which was driven
by the individual world rally champion



31

Bearings and seals

in 1992, was equipped with SKF bear-
ings in its wheels and gearbox. 

SKF also negotiated the two first con-
tracts in North America for deliveries of
the SKF Truck Hub Unit —a preadjust-
ed, sealed and lubricated for life wheel
bearing unit for heavy trucks. The prod-
uct has earlier been successfully intro-
duced in Europe.

MACHINERY INDUSTRY

Signs of a stabilization in the machinery
industry, which were beginning to
appear at the end of 1991, were replaced
by a clear decline during the latter half
of the year as a result of the continuing
recession. Investment willingness weak-
ened and the level of orders received
decreased. In Europe, this resulted in
lower volumes than the preceding year.
In the U.S., a slight improvement
occurred, compared with 1991, but sales
dropped again during the final quarter.
Customer categories in this segment
include manufacturers of contracting
machinery, machine tools and textile
machines.

NEW RECORD-BREAKING
BEARINGS

During the year, SKF Slewing Bearings
in France received an order for a slewing
bearing of record-breaking proportions.
The bearing is to carry the cutting bit of
a tunnel-boring machine manufactured
by Hitachi Zosen in Japan. With an

outer diameter of 7.2 meters and weigh-
ing 45 tons, it will be the heaviest bear-
ing in the world. The current record of
37 tons is also held by SKF. The tunnel-
boring machine is to be used for a 10-
kilometer-long tunnel under the Bay of
Tokyo. The order was won in the face of
stiff competition from, among others,
Japanese bearings manufacturers. 

During the year, SKF Sverige AB
delivered two spherical axial roller bear-
ings for Atlas Copco’s Jarva MK 27
tunnel-boring machine, to be used in the
construction of two railway tunnels
through Hallandsåsen, in southwestern
Sweden. Each of the bearings has an
outer diameter of 2.28 meters and
weighs 5.5 tons. Since the machine must
be able to bore diameters of between 6.4
meters and 12.4 meters, conventional

Industrial
distributors 28%

Cars 16%

Trucks
10%

Railways
3%

Heavy
industry 6%

General
machinery
13%

Aero-
space
3%

Electrical
industry
5%

End-
users
7%

Vehicle
replacement
9%

Sales by
application field 1992
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bearing technology could not be used.
Instead, SKF used a solution developed
by the Company as early as 1991, when
it was used for a tunnel-boring machine
also manufactured by Atlas Copco. 

DISTRIBUTOR MARKET

The after-market — sales that are large-
ly channeled through distributors or
direct to end-users — is SKF’s third-larg-
est customer segment, accounting for
about 45 percent of Group sales of bear-
ings. Sales to this segment are conducted
via the Group’s own sales companies, or
through a worldwide network of more
than 7 000 distributors and dealers, mak-
ing SKF’s distributor network unique in
the industry.

One of the key words in the Group’s
quality concept for the after-market is
service, which embraces such features as
always having the right products avail-
able, the ability to resolve customers’
problems, offering advice and possessing
the right technical expertise.

At SKF, this concept is called Trouble-
Free Operation, and activities in this
segment are being strengthened continu-
ously. 

During the year, a large number of
new products were launched with the
aim of helping SKF customers to
improve their maintenance and care of
rolling bearings and the machines and

equipment in which they are fitted. The
range includes an easy-to-handle kit,
equipped with measuring pens that
enable the customer to assess the condi-
tion of a bearing, either through meas-
urement of vibrations, high-frequency
acoustic emission, or temperature. The
SKF Microlog, a more sophisticated but
still portable item, is an analytical instru-
ment that reveals any imbalances or
incorrect settings in a machine that
could have an adverse effect on the
functional properties of a bearing. The
Microlog also includes built-in Multi-
Parameter Monitoring technology for
measuring vibrations emanating exclu-
sively from a bearing, thereby enabling
the user to assess the internal condition
of a bearing.

DISTRIBUTOR CUTBACKS

Despite experiencing some weakening,
the after-market was the segment that
performed most favorably in Europe. In
Germany, demand weakened due to a
decline in the engineering industry and
the fact that distributors continued to
reduce the level of their inventories.

SKF’s improved service also means
that distributors can maintain lower
inventory levels. The inventory status
among European distributors was also
affected by high interest rates. Many dis-
tributors lack the liquidity to finance

Europe excl. Sweden 55%

Sweden 4% North
America 
24%Rest of 

the world 17%

Sales by
geographical area 1992
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their inventories — even those that can
be considered safety stocks — due to the
high capital expenses involved. This had
an adverse effect on demand for SKF’s
products.

NEW PRODUCTS FROM
MRC BEARINGS

Aircraft manufacturers continued to
reduce their output, lay off employees
and close plants, at the same time as the
number of sub-suppliers decreased.

This trend placed continuing con-
straints on MRC Bearings, the SKF
Group’s American manufacturer of air-
craft bearings. On the other hand, the
trend in the aircraft industry towards
wide-body aircraft results in increased
demand for large jet engines, an area in
which MRC holds a strong position.
Toward the end of the year, General
Electric implemented decisive test runs
of the GE90, the company’s new engine
for large passenger aircraft. As part of
this project, MRC delivered all six bear-
ing prototypes for the main shaft of this
engine.

MRC strengthened its position with
Pratt & Whitney, who, during the year
ran test trials of the world’s largest
turbo-fan engine (PW 4084), for which
MRC supplied main shaft bearings.

In Europe, Italian SKF Avio strength-
ened its position as the main supplier of
main shaft bearings for the CFM 56, a
G.E. SNECMA-manufactured engine
used by the major aircraft manufactur-
ers. Rolls Royce also selected SKF Avio
to supply main shaft bearings for its
Trent wide-body aircraft engines.

MERCOSUL

Mercosul, the economic cooperation
between Argentina, Brazil, Paraguay
and Uruguay, made it possible for SKF
to integrate and rationalize manufactur-
ing operations at the Group’s plants in
Argentina and Brazil. Accordingly, all
manufacturing of tapered bearings is
now concentrated to the newly built
plant in Cajamar, outside São Paulo, to
enable this modern plant to be optimally
utilized.

As a result of the stabilization of the
Argentinean economy and increase in
industrial activity, SKF Argentina
increased its production and sales. The
company increased its share of orders
from Sevel and Autolatina, two major
car manufacturers. Sevel produces
Peugeot and Citroën and Autolatina
produces VW and Ford.

In Brazil, the automotive industry
recovered and production rose sharply,
thereby benefiting SKF do Brasil. A
large order for tapered bearings was
secured from GM in Brazil. 

The gradual phase-out of Brazilian
import tariffs resulted in fierce price
competition. SKF fared well and
increased its share of the Brazilian mar-
ket, and also reported improved earn-
ings, following several years of profit-
ability problems.

ASIAN ADDITION

The Group’s most recently built plant, in
Nilai, outside Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia,
became operational during the year. The
commissioning of the plant is proceeding
as planned.

Using Malaysia as its manufacturing
base, SKF’s sales organization was able
to secure several orders with new
Japanese OEM customers (Original
Equipment Manufacturers) during the
year. The number of employees at the
Malaysian plant is now slightly more
than 400.

For the first time in many years, a
slower growth rate was recorded in
India during 1992. At the same time,
competition intensified as new bearing
plants came on stream. The rate of pro-
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duction at SKF’s own newly built plant
in Bangalore continued to rise. 

STRENGTHENED POSITION FOR CR

In the North American market, the SKF
Group significantly strengthened its
position in the after-market through the
acquisition of the seals manufacturing
company, Chicago Rawhide (CR) in
1990. Through the integration of the
SKF and CR distribution channels to the
automotive after-market, substantial
savings could be made and the entire
network expanded. The expansion pro-
cess continued during 1992, through
some 50 automotive after-market ware-
house distributors selecting CR as their
supplier in preference to competitive
makes. This led to increased business.

CR also improved its position within
the heavy duty trucks sector. In the U.S.,
the term “fleet” is commonly used to
describe a truck park consisting of at
least ten vehicles. During the year, CR
attracted an additional 700 such fleets.
This means that the SKF Group supplies
seals and rolling bearings to these cus-
tomers. It is estimated that SKF’s share
of this market segment increased during
the year. 

IMPROVEMENTS FOR
CR INDUSTRIES

CR Industries, which is that part of CR
responsible for manufacturing and sales
to customers in the OEM segment, gave
priority to three key areas during 1992 in
order to strengthen its competitiveness,
namely:
– response to requests for quotations
– sample delivery performance
– new product introductions
Significant improvements were reported
in all three areas.

During the year, CR established the
Rawhide University for the further
training of company personnel at all lev-
els. The objective is to prepare em-
ployees for new areas of responsibility
within the organization. 

In combination with CR Industries,
SKF’s European seals company, RFT
S.p.A., in Italy, established a new unit,
CR Europe, to commence sales to large
OEM customers in Europe. The opera-
tion got off to a positive start, despite
the weak European economy. RFT also
supported CR Industries to start manu-
facturing in the U.S. of seals for Hub-
bearing units.

WEAK DEVELOPMENT

During the year, most of the Group’s
portfolio business operations recorded
trends that were similar to those for
bearings. The Seeger-Orbis Group,
whose companies manufacture and sell
fastening systems, decided to close one
of the two plants it had acquired in
Wilischthal, eastern Germany. The
German portion of Seeger-Orbis’ opera-
tions was also adversely affected by
exchange rate trends, since its major
competitors are based in Italy and the
U.K. Seeger-Reno, the Brazilian sub-
sidiary, constituted a positive feature,
reversing a substantial loss for 1991 into
a profit for 1992.

No improvements were noted in the
textile machinery components segment
during the year. However, increased
demand in and deliveries to China offset
a sharp decline in sales to Europe and
Japan. Despite this decline, Japan
remains the largest individual market for
SKF’s textile machinery components. 

CHANNEL CONCEPT

At the manufacturing level, efforts were
concentrated on the implementation of
the Channel concept (see separate
article), which is increasing productivity
and reducing costs and tied-up capital.

The plants are able to offer competi-
tive prices, high service and total quality
as a result of using channels as a base
and by focusing on five areas: preventive
maintenance, resetting activities, effi-
ciency, training and the elimination of
errors.



Special steels

Following the division of the former
Ovako Group into two separate
parts represented by the owners,

SKF and Finland’s Metra at the end of
1991, Ovako Steel, which is today a
wholly owned SKF subsidiary, com-
menced the fiscal year with an extensive
process of change. The new manage-
ment reviewed and changed the
company’s strategy and organization.

The new strategy focused on Ovako’s
core business, rolling bearing steel, with
the intention of strengthening the
company’s already leading position in
this sector and returning its operations
to profitability. In addition, a further
selective development continues of
other special steel products for the auto-
motive and engineering industries.

STANDARDIZATION

The number of steel types available in
the standard range was reduced from
more than 500 to approximately 200. In
cooperation with SKF, the number of
cold-rolled tubes was standardized, lead-
ing to a reduction of around 50 percent.
Cooperation work will continue through
1993, focusing on hot-rolled tubes and
bars.

A project designed to shorten lead
times within all areas of production was
initiated during the year. The goal is to
achieve at least a 50-percent decrease.

QUALITY

The principal aim during 1992 was to
further reduce the number of customer
complaints, a target which was success-

Ovako Steel is Europe’s leading manufacturer of rolling bearing steel and a major
producer of other special steels. The manufacturing program includes hot-rolled steel
and cold-finished steel products in the form of bars, wire and tubes. In addition, the
company produces rolled rings, forged components and OK couplings. The most
important customer segments are the rolling bearings industry, the automotive indus-
try and the general engineering industry.

Ovako Steel has manufacturing units in Sweden, France, the Netherlands,
the United Kingdom and the United States. Steel production operations are confined
to Hofors, in Sweden.

Special steels
(SEK m) 1992

Net sales ................................... 3 076

Loss after financial
income and expense................ –  442

Additions to property, 
plant and equipment............... 55

Average number
of employees at work ............. 3 491

During 1991 and 1990 Ovako was 
reported as an associated company.
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fully achieved. Major efforts were made
in all areas, including technological
improvements within the metallurgy
segment, improved control methods and
equipment and the establishment of
trouble-shooting groups. Cooperation
with SKF was intensive and substantial
portions of the workforce were given
training in quality matters. Clearly
measurable results were achieved in the
quality area.

TOUGH MARKET SITUATION

The tough market situation for special
steels that characterized operations in
1991 seemed to ease during the second
quarter of 1992. However, demand
declined once again during the summer
months and the second half of 1992
showed a strongly negative trend. To a
certain extent, the increased proportions
of steel deliveries made to SKF’s bear-
ings plants helped to balance the volume
downturn in the market.

Ovako’s decision to focus on rolling
bearing steel and other closely related
special steels resulted in a strong
decrease in the sale of externally pur-
chased products. This, combined with
the negative trend in prices that fol-
lowed the overcapacity that exists in the
industry, led to a reduced level of sales
in 1992, compared with 1991.

PRODUCTION OF WIRE ROD
IN SMALLER DIMENSIONS
PHASED OUT

The most tangible structural change at
Ovako Steel Hofors, Sweden, which
consists of a steel mill, tube and ring-
rolling plant and certain refining units,
was the closure of the production plant
of wire rod in smaller dimensions, which
had been unprofitable for many years.
The decision to phase out this operation

was taken during the second quarter of
1992 and the related costs were charged
against operating earnings in an amount
of approximately SEK 50 m. The closure
of the wire plant has been completed.

In Hällefors, Sweden, negotiations
with unions were initiated regarding the
closure of the ingot rolling mill and a
sharp reduction in indirect and adminis-
trative personnel. Negotiations have
subsequently been expanded to include
a relocation of coarse bars production to
Hofors. The objective is to create a
strong and competitive unit for medium
size bars and wire in Hällefors.

A new process for cold-drawn tubes
was commenced in Hofors during the
year. This resulted in positive effects in
terms of quality and productivity, at the
same time as customers are provided
with benefits in their own manufacturing
process.

As part of the focus on the rolled ring
product area, one of the world’s most
advanced ring-rolling plants was com-
missioned in Hofors during the year.

In the United States, where produc-
tion units for rolled rings within Ovako
Ajax Inc. and Ovako’s sales companies
were located in three different areas,
work to concentrate the operations to
just one location was implemented. This
resulted in clear rationalization benefits.

Ovako Steel’s sales organization in
Sweden and the rest of Europe was
exposed to a comprehensive rationaliza-
tion program, particularly in terms of
reductions of the number of inventory
points in Europe. Extensive cuts were
also made in the number of employees.

The competitiveness of the forging
operations in Arvika, Sweden, was
strengthened during the year through an
extensive program focusing on new
products for the automotive industry in
particular, such as a new steering
knuckle and a new valve rocker arm for
diesel engines.

The companies in the CROMAX
business area, which manufacture and
sell hard-chromed bars and tubes,
strengthened their positions as market
leaders in Europe with the start-up of
the new production facility in the
Netherlands.

Operations outside the strategically
defined core business, such as those of
Ovako Bamarec in France and Ovako
Profiler in Luleå, Sweden, were sold
during the year. The costs related to
these divestments were charged against
earnings in the second quarter in an
amount of approximately SEK 85 m.

Europe excl. Sweden 53%

North
America
17%

Rest of
the world
4%

Sweden
26%

Sales by
geographical area 1992

Cars29%

Trucks
10%

Heavy
industry 30%

General
machinery
19%

Industrial
distributors
12%

Sales by
application field 1992
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SKF’s version of this trend is
called the Channel con-

cept. With the help of various signal
systems — colors, for example — so-
called channels are identified in every
workshop, with the aim that the flow of
products in each of the well-defined
channels shall be as smooth as possible.
That the flow is always in a forward
direction is not the result of rearguard
pressure from a production planner, but
rather because the deliveries and
machines downstream create a pull-
along effect. “Really, it is more a matter
of mental channels and a total change in
our perceptions of production,” says the
SKF President Mauritz Sahlin.

“The interesting thing is that the new
concept is so simple that it is difficult to
define. Moreover, it does not require
any significant investments. It would
have been easier to approach the organ-
ization with complex drawings and cal-
culations relating to a half billion kronor
investment, than to introduce such a
simple idea as production channels.”

Necessity is the mother of invention,
as they say. Ideas about “lean produc-
tion” and “just-in-time deliveries” have
been hatched by several different entre-
preneurs, independently of each other. 

A producer who earns little needs to
be paid as quickly as possible by his cus-
tomers and cannot afford to purchase
large volumes of materials in advance. It
is necessary to reduce lead times, mean-
ing the time between receipt of the
order and delivery. This also requires
not using more materials than the mini-
mum needed to complete an order.

In the past, the result of the develop-
ment of production processes achieved
by companies like SKF was considered
incredible. As a result of constantly
improved machine technology, the time
required for a machine to produce a
bearing was reduced by 95 percent
during the past four decades.

However, even financial analysts with
no insight into production processes
could see that lead times were too long,
simply by comparing the inventories in
the balance sheets with annual sales.
The production process required an
excessive amount of goods in process.

SKF’s Channel concept

A portion of the benefits deriving from
the efficient manufacturing process was
lost due to products constantly forming
bottlenecks at various intermediate
storage phases in the plants. Customers
who knew that a product only required a
few hours of effective manufacturing
time wondered why they had to wait up
to four months for the processing of a
special order. 

Although comparisons made with the
world’s other leading bearing manufac-
turers as recently as 1990 showed that
SKF was a shade better than its German
competitor, FAG, they also showed that
Japanese competitors turned over their
inventory even quicker. 

In Japan, awareness of the importance
of lead times is so great that the
country’s banks actually use it as a ratio
in their lending activities. Any company
whose lead times are more than 100
times greater than manufacturing time
in the machines is refused credit.
Instead, they are recommended to
release funds from their inventories. For
a company to be ranked favorably, its
lead times must not exceed ten times its
manufacturing time. It should be noted
that European companies can have lead
times that are a thousand times greater
than manufacturing time!

But this will soon be industrial history.
The new industrial revolution has com-
pletely transformed attitudes to the
amount of time permissible between
receipt of a customer order and delivery
of the product. An increasing number of
European companies are changing their
approach. In future, an ever-growing
portion of the flow of products will be
manufactured against a direct order. 

Today, SKF has made significant
progress in its efforts to reduce lead
times. One after the other, the manufac-
turing units have introduced the new
organizational forms and now most of
the Group’s units have installed and are
further developing their production
channels.

Initially, it is inevitable that the chan-
nels cross each other, since certain
machines and people are shared by sev-
eral channels. In time, this pattern will
be changed, so that each channel runs

What exactly is this new industrial revolution, this process of change that is causing
stolid Swedish industrialists to behave like the crusading church ministers of yester-
year?  They have stopped using their conventional trade jargon and instead use com-
parisons and images to describe their activities. They talk about flows and team
work, and customers whose demand creates a pull-along effect that steers production.
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independently and much more directly.
The individual worker is no longer
responsible for a particular process and
instead shares responsibility for an
entire production channel flow. The
result is measured for entire channels
rather than one manufacturing process,
which also changes the basis for cost
accounting. “This is a change for the
better,” claim SKF accountants. “Now
we have a language that can be under-
stood by everybody, not just production
technicians.”

Initially, the focus is on reducing the
size of the various intermediate invento-
ries. Levels have been halved in just a
few years, which has released SEK 600
million and saved the interest expenses
that would otherwise have resulted from
such capital. But that is not the most
important achievement.

It is like reducing the water level in a
power station reservoir. One obstacle
after the other is revealed as the water
recedes. In a plant with substantial inter-
mediate inventories, it is difficult to
identify where the production bottle-
necks are located. There is a consider-
able risk that time and resources are
allocated to imagined flow problems.
Now it is possible to see where the real
problems lie.

The differences between the old and
the new systems are substantial but they
are difficult to describe because it is a
question of outlook rather than estab-
lished models. One way of describing
the difference could be to characterize
the rules of the game, and life in the new
and the old systems. 

OLD SYSTEM CHANNEL PRODUCTION
Pressure from organization Stimuli from customer orders
Planned system System that reacts
Uniform flow desirable Only exactly as much as is needed is 

produced
Few resettings Many resettings
Buffer inventories Natural flows
Planning in stages Information integrated in the system
Bottlenecks hidden by buffer inventories Bottlenecks clearly visible and

priorities made
High quality costs more High quality costs less
Substantial investments Minor investments
Shop floor personnel and staff Team mates
Permanent positions Flexible positions
Follow the rule book Act on own initiative
Others monitor quality The team measures own performance
Always do as much as possible Do only what is necessary at exactly 

the right time
Cost-point based accounting Accounting by channel
Functional organization in plant Flow organization; each channel 

contains built-in functions
Achieve best possible results Eliminate faults
Major improvement campaigns Many small regular improvements

Such a comparison can be made of
point after point. In many respects, what
was true yesterday is today’s bad joke!
Naturally, not everyone can handle the
mental adjustment and most people
have problems, at least in the beginning.
In essence, it’s all a question of being
able to replace small demarcated duties
with less well-defined joint responsibility
for a complete flow. The former barriers

between salaried staff and the shop floor
workers are removed and a complete
level of management in the company
disappears.

The stress involved for certain individ-
uals is hardly greater, but the pressure to
which they are exposed is quite different
from that experienced previously, and
against which they were helpless. Today,
the individual team member has an
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SKF is one of the companies
that have signed the

International Chamber of Commerce’s
Business Charter for Sustainable
Development, whose statutes include
principles for environmentally compat-
ible leadership. From SKF’s viewpoint,
signing this charter was a natural step,
since it is in line with the Group envi-
ronmental policy, which is introduced
in the following way: 

“The Group’s overall objective is to
attain long-term and sustained profit-
ability. The main task related to this
objective is to develop, produce and
market products that satisfy the needs
of our customers. At the same time, we
shall take measures to safeguard an
environment in ecological balance, that
does not jeopardize health.”

The environmental concept encom-
passes both the external environment
and the internal working environment.
All manufacturing and sales companies
have appointed a person to be respon-
sible for environmental matters.

Extensive efforts are devoted to
developing new manufacturing pro-
cesses and machines that eliminate

environmentally hazardous substances
in the production process. SKF strives
continuously to minimize emissions
into the ground, air and water and to
create the best possible working envi-
ronment for all employees.

New SKF facilities are always con-
structed in such a manner that they sat-
isfy the most stringent international
environmental requirements.

The Group’s manufacturing process-
es are designed as closed systems,
which means that their effect on the
external environment is minimal. Most
of the materials used are recoverable
and form a raw materials base for use
in future production operations.
However, efforts to become even better
in the environmental area are in contin-
ual progress.

When selecting the technologies and
machines to be used within the Group,
consideration of any possible environ-
ment effects constitutes an integral part
of the selection process. As stated in
the Group’s environmental policy:
“Processes and products that are envi-
ronmentally compatible shall receive
priority”.

opportunity to influence the factors that
are causing a stressful situation.

As a result, most of the people within
the SKF organization already support
the new way of functioning in the work-
place.

What progress has been made? The
lead times mentioned earlier are a good
yardstick for measuring the success of
the system. In 1989, it took 18 weeks for
a rolling bearing order to proceed from
raw material to delivery of the finished
product, of which lead time relating to
steel operations accounted for eight
weeks. The goal is to reduce this average
time by 50 percent during 1993. At the
end of 1992, the average time had been
reduced to 12 weeks, so everything is
pointing in the right direction. At the
same time, manufacturing inventories
have also been halved, as have the num-
ber of reject products. In a few years, it
will be time to report additional reduc-
tions of 50 percent. The pursuit of per-
fection is a never-ending process.

But the overall positive effects are
even greater. The company with the
fastest lead times can also reduce its
finished-goods inventory by an equiva-
lent amount. Other effects that are just

as important, but perhaps not so self-
evident, are improved product quality
and lower manufacturing costs. If the
flow moves more rapidly, this leads to
fewer bottlenecks, less reprocessing and
fewer unnecessary stages. There are
fewer opportunities to make mistakes
and, since the intensity of the process
itself demands the production of more
and faster information, all of the partici-
pants learn more. The process is actually
self-refining in this respect.

The increased motivation of the
employees also results in less absentee-
ism and reduced employee turnover.

New self-instructional production
units have already replaced the large
bureaucratic production systems based
on the principles of Taylorism. Those
companies which do not make the
adjustment, will be unable to compete
with those which do, since there are no
limits to the progress the self-instruc-
tional organizations can make in achiev-
ing productivity and quality goals. 

Ronald Fagerfjäll, 
journalist at the Swedish business
magazine Affärsvärlden

SKF’s Channel concept
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Parent Company Board of Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANDERS SCHARP, Stockholm
Born 1934. Chairman. Board member
since 1992.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
AB Electrolux.
Chairman Saab-Scania AB and Incentive
AB.
Vice Chairman Investor AB and Atlas
Copco AB.
Board member Email Limited
(Australia), The Swedish Employers’
Confederation, The Association of
Swedish Engineering Industries and The
Federation of Swedish Industries.

ALF ÅKERMAN, Göteborg
Born 1923. Vice Chairman. Board mem-
ber since 1973.
Chairman Trygg Hansa SPP Holding AB,
Svenska Nestlé AB, BASF Svenska AB,
Westpartner AB and BioVäst-Gruppen
AB.
Vice Chairman Trygg Life.
Board member NCC AB, Nordstjernan
Förvaltning AB, NCC Fastigheter AB,
Effjohn Oy, Helsinki (Finland),
Mölnlycke AB, Forbo S.A., Zürich
(Switzerland), Kabi Pharmacia AB, AB
Färdig Betong and The Federation of
Swedish Industries, a o.

GÖRAN JOHANSSON, Göteborg
Born 1945. Employee representative.
Board member since 1975.
First Vice Chairman Executive Committee
of the City Council of Göteborg.
Chairman Liseberg AB.
Board member Götaverken Miljö AB and
Statens Vattenfallsverk.

MAURITZ SAHLIN, Göteborg
Born 1935. President and Group Chief
Executive. Board member since 1976.
Board member AB Export-Invest, Saab-
Scania AB, Investor AB, Chalmers
Industriteknik (CIT), The Federation of
Swedish Industries and The Swedish
Employers’ Confederation.
Member of Verwaltungsbeirat, Dresdner
Bank AG (Germany).
Shareholding in SKF: 28 092 plus 2 000
warrants

GÖSTA BYSTEDT, Stockholm
Born 1929. Board member since 1982.
Chairman AB Scanditronix, Interprint
AB, Sörmlands Grafiska AB and
Nilörngruppen AB.
Vice Chairman AB Electrolux,
AB Export-Invest and Axel Johnson AB.
Board member Skandinaviska Enskilda
Banken (Stockholmsgruppen), ESAB AB,
Atlas Copco AB, Förvaltings AB
Hasselfors and The Federation of Swedish
Industries.

PER-OLOF ERIKSSON, Sandviken
Born 1938. Board member since 1987.
Group President and CEO of Sandvik AB.
Chairman Svenska Kraftnät (Swedish
National Grid).
Board member Sandvik AB, SSAB
Swedish Steel Corporation, Handels-
banken and The Federation of Swedish
Industries.

GIOVANNI MARIO ROSSIGNOLO,
Turin, Italy
Born 1930. Board member since 1987.
Chairman Industrie Zanussi, Seleco,
Brionvega Atlas Copco Italia and Perstorp
Italia.
Vice Chairman and member of the
Ericsson S.p.A. Executive Committee.
Board member Ducati Energia,
Consortium and Fiar (Italy), Electrolux
España (Spain) and Schroder Bank.

INGER STENSTRÖM, Göteborg
Born 1933. Employee representative.
Board member since 1990.
Chairman SIF (The Swedish Union of
Clerical and Technical Employees in
Industry), AB SKF, Göteborg.
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CLAES DAHLBÄCK, Stockholm
Born 1947. Board member since 1991.
President Investor AB.
Board member ASEA AB, AB Astra,
Incentive AB, Vin & Sprit AB, AB
Electrolux, Stora Kopparbergs Bergslags
AB (STORA) and Saab-Scania AB.

SUNE CARLSSON, Kilchberg,
Switzerland
Born 1941. Board member since 1991.
Executive Vice President of the ABB
Group.

ANDERS SJÖBERG, Romelanda
Born 1935. Board member since 1992.
Professor. President of Chalmers
University of Technology, Göteborg.
Board member Skanska AB and
Handelsbanken Västra Sverige.

LARS OVE HÅKANSSON, Djursholm
Born 1937. Board member since 1992.
Chairman JM Byggnads- och Fastighets
AB.
Vice Chairman Euroc AB.
Board member Banister Continental Ltd.
(Canada), Graningeverkens AB,
Handelsbanken, Investment AB Cardo
and Sandvik AB, a.o.

DEPUTY BOARD MEMBERS

LENNART ALVERÅ, Göteborg
Born 1952. Employee representative.
Deputy board member since 1987.
Chairman Metalworkers’ Union, AB SKF,
Göteborg.
Shareholding in SKF: 20

CLEMENS KARLSSON, Lidköping
Born 1934. Employee representative.
Deputy board member since 1987.
Vice Chairman SIF (The Swedish Union
of Clerical and Technical Employees in
Industry), Lidköping Machine Tools AB.
Shareholding in SKF: 32

MARCUS WALLENBERG, Düsseldorf,
Germany
Born 1956. Deputy board member since
1988.
Board member AB Astra, Saab-Scania
AB and Saab Automobile AB. 
Deputy board member Investor AB,
SILA, ABA and The Knut and Alice
Wallenberg Foundation.
Shareholding in SKF: 6 000

MICHAEL TRESCHOW,
Drottningholm
Born 1943. Deputy board member since
1992.
President and Chief Executive Officer
Atlas Copco AB.
Board member Saab Automobile AB.
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Group organization

Group Chief Executive MAU R I T Z SAH L I N

Finance &  Administration
Treasury

Legal
Personnel &  Organization

Public Affairs
Corporate Planning

Research

KAJ THORÉN

TORE BERTILSSON

KRISTER PEIL

OLLE RANÄNG

LARS G MALMER

STEN MALMSTRÖM

HENNING WITTMEYER

Marketing & Sales
TOMMY H KARLSSON

Manufacturing, Development & Quality
ROLF JACOBSON

SKF
North 

America
RAY

LANGTON

SKF
Europe

MAURITZ

SAHLIN

SKF
Overseas Mfg

Companies
PETER

KASCHNER

SKF
Sales

Companies
ANDERS

BRÄNNSTRÖM

SKF
Sales Co’s 

Asia Pacific
DALE

CAMPKIN-SMITH
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Components
CLIVE

FRANKLIN
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GUNNAR
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Country Name, location Head Employees* Group
Holdings %

Argentina SKF Argentina S.A., Buenos Aires Raúl H Gaspar 448 99.9
Huber S.A.I.C., Buenos Aires Raúl H Gaspar 126 100

Australia SKF Australia Pty. Ltd., Oakleigh Ian Engeman 80 100
CR Industries Pty. Ltd., Mentone Fred Hunt 14 100

Austria SKF Österreich AG, Steyr Klaus Dieter Stroehmann 764 100
Steyr Wälzlager Ges.m.b.H., Steyr Klaus Dieter Stroehmann 120 100
Compensa Handel Ges.m.b.H., Wien Walter Kral 8 100
Seeger Gesellschaft m.b.H., Wien Jürgen Dziadek 5 100

Belgium SKF Forecasting & Supply Office (FSO), Bruxelles Fred Orre 36 100
SKF Belgium S.A., Bruxelles Ingvar Karlsson 89 100
SKF Intertrade S.A., Bruxelles Björn Uby 84 100
SKF Multitec N.V./S.A., Bruxelles Hans A Bender 18 100
Seeger-Orbis S.A., Bruxelles Bernard Tilleuil 8 100

Brazil SKF do Brasil Ltda., São Paulo Liberto Sanz 1 068 100
Seeger-Reno Indústria e Comércio Ltda., São Paulo João Scivoletto 206 100

Bulgaria SKF Sofia, Sofia Ivan Stoimenov 6 100
Canada SKF Canada Limited, Scarborough Jan Lindhe 148 100

CR Services Canada, Oakville Ron Starr 54 100
Chile SKF Chilena S.A.I.C., Santiago Johan Wersäll 64 100
China, Peoples SKF Beijing Representative Office, Beijing Eric Yip/Li Jin Lian 8 100
Republic SKF Shanghai Representative Office, Shanghai Jiang Jian Zhong 6 100

SKF Guangzhou Representative Office, Guangzhou Ralph Woo Chung Yuen/ 2 100
Lee Ka Lun

Colombia SKF Colombia S.A., Bogota Francisco Alvarez 19 100
Croatia SKF Services d.o.o., Zagreb Börje Nordman 3 100
Czech Republic SKF Československo a.s., Praha Per Hanngren 37 100
Denmark SKF Danmark A/S, Brøndby Bent Røddik 71 100

SKF Maintenance Systems A/S, Brøndby Steen Damsgaard 5 100
Nordtransmission A/S, Ry Per Møller 1 26
Ovako Stål A/S, Tåstrup Peder Jørgensen 29 100

Finland Oy SKF Ab, Espoo Göran Westerholm 61 100
SKF Tohmac Transmission Oy, Tohmajärvi Antti Hämäläinen 11 100
Ovako Teräsmarkkinointi Oy, Masala Markku Ala-Lahti 19 100

France SKF France S.A., Clamart Jacques Bischoff 2 614 99.9
ADR S.A., Thomery Jean-François Combe 70 100
SKF Slewing Bearings (RKS S.A.), Avallon Bernard Lefevre 285 100
CGR Roulements S.n.c., Beauchamp Willy Tartour 62 100
SARMA, Saint-Vallier-sur-Rhone Pierre Raynal 600 100
Transrol S.n.c., Chambéry Daniel Lemaire 261 100
SKF Equipements S.n.c., Montigny-le-Bretonneux Francis Soubestre 88 100
Société de Mécanique Magnétique S.A., Saint-Marcel Claude Langlade 57 11.9
Ovako La Foulerie S.A., Carignan Jean Marx 266 100
Ovako Redon S.A., Redon Claude Hullot 30 100
Ovako Acier S.A., Le Blanc Mesnil Gerard Chassagne 19 100

Germany SKF GmbH, Schweinfurt Michael Haupt 6 629 99.9
SKF Gleitlager GmbH, Püttlingen Hartmut Hutter 506 100
Seeger-Orbis GmbH, Königstein/Schneidhain Bernd Latteman 280 100

Seeger-Orbis in Wilischthal GmbH, Wilischthal Hilmar Kittel 77 100
SKF Textilmaschinen-Komponenten GmbH, Stuttgart Karl-Götz Arnold 1 015 100
SKF Linearsysteme GmbH, Schweinfurt Rune Malm 219 100
Mikronwerk GmbH, Aschaffenburg Karl Sieber 58 100
Ovako Stahl GmbH, Erkrath Per Tamm 67 100

Greece SKF Hellas S.A., Athina Philip Avratoglou 62 100
Hong Kong SKF China Limited, Hong Kong Bee Kek Chng 36 100
Hungary SKF Svéd Golyóscsapágy Rt., Budapest István Kállay 48 100

Group units and associated companies
* Number of employees registered at the year-end.
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Country Name, location Head Emplyees* Group
Holdings %

India SKF Bearings India Ltd., Bombay Richard Gresko 2 896 51
Skefko India Bearing Co. Ltd., Bombay Harshad M Chhaya 146 39.9

Iran AB SA des Roulements à Billes Suédois 
SKF Tehran, Tehran Ulf Ulin 20 100

Italy SKF Industrie S.p.A., Rivoli Luca Paveri Fontana 4 835 100
RFT S.p.A., Villanova d’Asti Giuseppe Donato 633 100
SKF Componenti Industriali S.p.A., 

San Mauro Torinese Mario Nepote 58 100
Anderton Italia S.p.A., Trezzano S/N Bruno Resmini 20 90
Ovako Acciai S.p.A., Nerviano (Mi) Roberto Aielli 8 100

Ivory Coast SKF Abidjan, Abidjan Bernard Durand 9 100
Japan SKF Japan Ltd., Tokyo Dale Campkin-Smith 105 100
Jordan SKF Intertrade SA Amman, Amman Stephan Norberg 3 100
Kenya SKF Kenya Limited, Nairobi David Roberts 27 100
Korea SKF Korea Ltd., Pusan Björn Sidoff 16 100
Malaysia SKF Bearing Industries (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Nilai Gordon Huddy (acting) 431 100

SKF Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur Ong Eng Yeow 37 100
Mexico SKF de México, S.A. de C.V., Mexico, D.F. Geo Stammer 773 100
The Netherlands SKF Kogellagerindustrie B.V., Veenendaal Antonie Meijer 401 100

SKF Nederland B.V., Veenendaal Ingvar Karlsson 125 100
SKF Maintenance Products B.V., Mijdrecht Hans Jonsson 45 100
SKF Multitec B.V., Amsterdam Joop N J van der Kwaak 24 100
SKF Engineering & Research Centre B.V., Nieuwegein Henning Wittmeyer 183 100
SKF College of Engineering, Nieuwegein Steve Walker 3 100
Ovako Twente B.V., Almelo Benno v.d. Worp 29 100
Ovako Steel BeNeLux B.V., Veenendaal Percy Hamilton 19 100

New Zealand SKF New Zealand Limited, Auckland Kevin Brown 14 100
Nigeria SKF Nigeria Limited, Lagos M O Adegbite 6 100
Norway SKF Norge A/S, Oslo Bjarne Johansen 49 100

SKF Multitec A/S, Oslo Kenneth Holmgren 8 100
Ovako Stål A/S, Oslo Lennart Nordström (acting) 4 100

Panama SKF Panama, S.A. (Panama Region), Panama City Stefan Karlsson 12 100
SKF Latintrade, Inc., Panama City Manuel Penha 27 100

Peru SKF del Perú S.A., Lima Lars Andrén 40 100
Philippines SKF Philippines, Inc., Manila Jan Brons 26 99
Poland SKF Centrala Handlowo-Techniczna sp. z.o.o.,

Warszawa Claes Sturegård 8 100
Portugal Sociedade SKF Limitada, Amadora Lennart Nyström 55 100
Russia SKF Moscow, Moscow Anatoli Oussov 4 100
Singapore SKF South East Asia & Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapore Phil Knights 126 100

SKF Manufacturing Singapore (Pte) Ltd., Singapore Siegfried Klein 225 100
South Africa SKF South Africa (Pty) Ltd., Boksburg (Johannesburg) Sten-Åke Aronsson 103 100

SKF Bearing Manufacturers (Pty) Ltd., Uitenhage Lennart Johansson 262 100
Spain SKF Española S.A., Madrid Carl-Gustaf Nordheim 957 100

SKF Productos Industriales S.A., Barcelona José A Parrilla 27 100
Sweden SKF Sverige AB, Göteborg Sten Wendin 2 639 100

SKF Vehicle Parts AB, Göteborg Johan Vickhoff 66 100
SKF Eurotrade AB, Göteborg Claes Sturegård 19 100
SKF Mekan AB, Katrineholm Martin Ivert 540 100
Lidköping Machine Tools AB, Lidköping Jerry Karlsson 354 100
Fixtur-Laser AB, Mölndal Nils Andersson 21 60
SKF Specialty Products AB, Göteborg Staffan Lindblom 127 100
Stellana AB, Laxå Börje Persson 40 100
SKF Multitec AB, Helsingborg Göran Wahlberg 32 100

Group units and associated companies
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Country Name, location Head Employees* Group
Holdings %

SKF Nova AB, Göteborg Börje Andersson 23 100
SKF Dataservice AB, Göteborg Kaj Thorén 132 100
SKF International AB, Göteborg Per Thorén 13 100
SKF Reinsurance Co. Ltd., Göteborg Per Åke Wetterqvist 5 100
SKF Support AB, Göteborg Göran Gustafsson 99 100
SKF Fastighetsförvaltning AB, Göteborg Hans Kalmner 50 100
ScanDust AB, Landskrona Ulf Helgesson 78 75
Ovako Steel AB, Danderyd/Hofors/Hällefors Gunnar Gremlin 2 424 100
Ovako Mora AB, Mora Åke Paulsson 32 100
Ovako Arvika AB, Arvika Johnny Tidström 233 100
Ovako Couplings AB, Hofors Hans Odsberg 51 100
Ovako Stål Förs. AB, Eskilstuna Danerik Hägglund 118 100

Switzerland SKF (Schweiz), Schwerzenbach Rolf Nordahl 58 100
Gebr. Loepfe AG, Wetzikon Hermann Spinner 143 100
SMM Spindel AG, Uster Claus Beyer 113 100

Taiwan, R.O.C. SKF Bearing Services Taiwan Ltd., Taipei Göran Gustafsson 62 100
Fairsq (Taiwan) Co. Ltd., Taipei Tony Yeh 63 40

Thailand SKF (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok Pelle Eriksen 70 49
Turkey SKF Bileli Rulmanlari Ltd. Sti., Istanbul Tosun Benk 56 99.96
United Arab
Emirates SKF Intertrade Rep. Office, Dubai Yousef Schreim 2 100
United Kingdom SKF (U.K.) Limited, Luton Ulf Jemsby 857 100

Anderton International Ltd., Bingley Robert P Wieremiej 177 100
Ampep P.L.C., Clevedon Andrew J Grogono 159 100
SKF Engineering Products Limited, Milton Keynes Bo Hägg 53 100
Ovako UK Ltd., Alfreton Roger Mason 16 100
Ovako Steel Ltd., Wolverhampton Roger Mason 14 100

Uruguay SKF Uruguay S.A., Montevideo Lloyd Brown 16 100
USA SKF North America Division Bearings USA, 

King of Prussia, PA Raymond B Langton 2 445 99.8
CR Services, Elgin, IL William S Wade, Jr. 371 99.8
Korody-Colyer, Compton, CA Eugene Zamiska 256 99.8
SKF Plain Bearings USA, Winsted, CT Sonnie Wing 47 99.8
SKF Condition Monitoring, Inc., San Diego, CA Marianne Ericsson 114 99.8
CR Industries, Elgin, IL Dennis B Clark 1 806 99.8
MRC Bearings, Jamestown, NY Bengt Nilsson 969 99.8
Flex-Link Systems Co., Bethlehem, PA Bo Ljunggren 23 99.8
Seeger, Inc., Somerset, NJ Ronald M England 99 100
SKF Textile Products, Inc., Gastonia, NC E Gordon Summey 5 100
Ovako Ajax, Inc., York Anders Tenebäck 140 100
Ovako Steel, Inc., York Peter Loxterman 23 100

Venezuela SKF Venezolana S.A., Caracas Reginaldo T Marques 50 100
Vietnam SKF (Ho Chi Minh City), Ho Chi Minh City Jean-Jacques Schwindling 1 100
Zambia SKF (Zambia) Ltd., Kitwe Kent Jägnert 124 100
Zimbabwe SKF (Zimbabwe) (Pvt.) Ltd., Harare Jim Pattison 36 100

Associated companies are not included in the Group’s total number of employees registered at the year-end.

Group units and associated companies
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Shares and shareholders

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES AS PER 31 DECEMBER 1992
London Geneva Zürich
(1928) (1935) (1985)

Stockholm Paris Basel New York
(1916) (1929) (1985) (1985)

A shares 49 256 332 •
B shares 63 743 224 • • • • • • •

Total 112 999 556
Year of introduction on respective stock exchange is indicated within brackets.

The designations A and B indicate the voting power of the share. An A share has one
vote and a B share has one-thousandth of one vote. 

In 1992, the Annual General Meeting abolished the clause restricting the acquisition
of shares by foreign nationals and other controlled persons.

The SKF share is traded in the USA through the NASDAQ system via American
Depositary Receipts (ADR).

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL 1982-1992
Amount paid Share capital Number of shares

SEK m SEK m in millions

1982  Bonus issue 1:4 1 350 27.0
1989  Split 4:1 1 350 108.0
1990  Conversion of debentures 62 1 412 113.0

TRADING IN SKF SHARES
Number of shares

Year Stockholm London Stockholm, SEKm

1988 5 403 000 1 588
1989 8 426 000 1 802
1990 13 845 000 10 226 000 1 727
1991 27 212 000 38 896 000 2 659
1992 44 497 000 81 900 000 4 064
Source: Stockholm Stock Exchange, London Stock Exchange
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Shares and shareholders

OPTION CERTIFICATES

In 1990, AB SKF issued 11 000 000 option certificates.
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one new
B share at the price of 190 Swedish kronor, from July 1,
1993 through June 30, 1995.

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

In October 1984, AB SKF issued convertible debentures
for 237 million Swedish kronor, to which employees of
the Parent Company and its subsidiaries in Sweden, as
well as the SKF Aktiesparfond and the SKF Allemans-
fond could subscribe. Each debenture had a nominal
value of 190 Swedish kronor, and an interest coupon of
13 percent. Conversion into SKF B shares, or redemp-
tion, was possible up to February 1, 1990. The conver-
sion rate was 47.50 Swedish kronor after split during
1989. Full conversion of the debentures lead to an
increase of number of shares by 4 999 556, or 4.6 percent.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In May 1992, AB SKF issued zero coupon convertible
bonds amounting to 145 million ECU after a 8.75
percent discount. At full conversion, 8 499 965 B shares
will be issued. (See note 23 – Convertible bonds).

SHARE SAVINGS FUND FOR EMPLOYEES

SKF Aktiesparfond, a savings fund in which SKF
employees in Sweden could save during the period 1981
to 1984 was liquidated during 1991, as changes in tax
legislation made this type of fund unfavorable. The
fund’s assets, SKF-shares, were distributed to the
members.

A new fund with the same purpose, SKF Allemans-
fond, was started in April 1984. Most of the means of the
fund have been invested in SKF shares. On December
31, 1992, the SKF Allemansfond had 910 members and
assets amounting to 38 million Swedish kronor.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING

Number of shares per shareholder Number of shareholders Percent Number of shares Percent

1- 1 000 38 091 91.5 8 968 399 7.9
1 001- 10 000 3 177 7.6 9 718 584 8.6

10 001- 100 000 285 0.7 6 826 466 6.0
100 001- 97 0.2 87 483 513 77.5

Subtotal 41 650 100.0 112 996 962 100.0
Unclaimed bonus shares 2 594 0.0

112 999 556 100.0
Source: VPC AB’s public share register as of 1992-12-21

TEN LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
Number Number In percent of In percent of
of shares of votes share capital voting rights

1) Skanska AB 13 749 800 12 441 309 12.2 25.2
2) AB Investor 9 675 028 9 675 028 8.6 19.6
3) Förvaltnings AB Providentia 9 275 024 9 275 024 8.2 18.8
4) Försäkringsbolaget SPP 4 306 386 1 164 481 3.8 2.4
5) Fond 92-94 3 672 852 2 274 252 3.3 4.6
6) Fjärde Allmänna Pensionsfonden 3 534 276 2 152 583 3.1 4.4
7) Trygg Ömsesidig Livförsäkring 1 451 288 144 408 1.3 0.3
8) AMF, Pensionsförsäkringar 1 350 600 806 545 1.2 1.6
9) Skandia 1 238 628 195 943 1.1 0.4

10) Export-Invest AB 1 150 000 1 150 1.0 0.0

43.8 77.3
Source: VPC AB’s public share register as of 1992-12-21.

PER-SHARE DATA (Definitions see note 1)

Swedish kronor/share 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992

Earnings per share 6.30 6.65 8.80 13.65 7.70 –10.40 –13.20
Dividends per A and B share 2.75 3.00 3.50 4.25 4.25 4.25 –
Total dividends in millions of Swedish kronor 297 324 378 459 480 480 –
Purchase price of B shares at year-end on the 
Stockholm Stock Exchange 84 58 99 157 66 94 74

Shareholders’ equity per share 84 87 91 101 108 91 79
Risk-bearing capital per share 95 99 103 116 126 107 92
Yield in percent, B shares 3.3 5.2 3.5 2.7 6.4 4.5 –
P/E ratio, B shares 13.0 8.4 10.9 11.1 8.6 –    9.0 – 5.6
1) Dividend according to the Board’s proposed distribution of surplus.
The above data has been adjusted to reflect the 1989 stock split and the conversion of debentures into shares in 1990.

1)
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Seven-year review of the SKF Group

Amounts in millions of Swedish kronor 
unless otherwise stated 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992

Income statements

Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 180 19 604 21 248 25 066 27 766 26 302 26 649
Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 878 983 1 042 1 143 1 137 969 759

Other operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 261 212 177 305 164 238 148
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 17 120 – 18 504 – 19 865 – 22 772 – 26 015 – 26 596 – 27 982

Operating loss/income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 321 1 312 1 560 2 599 1 915 – 56 – 1 185
Financial income and expense - net . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 74 – 158 – 41 – 129 – 165 – 165 – 592

Loss/income after financial income and expense. . . . . 1 247 1 154 1 519 2 470 1 750 – 221 – 1 777
Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 519 – 430 – 543 – 989 – 719 – 66 280
Equity in loss/income of associated companies. . . . . . – 1 42 37 78 – 133 – 907 –
Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 31 – 27 – 34 – 32 – 26 17 7

Loss/income after taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 696 739 979 1 527 872 – 1 177 – 1 490
Extraordinary income and expense, net of taxes . . . . – 97 0 – – 14 142 – – 214

Net loss/income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 599 739 979 1 513 1 014 – 1 177 – 1 704

Balance sheets

Current financial assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 854 3 227 3 611 3 417 3 812 3 823 3 075
Trade accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 779 3 889 4 348 4 941 4 976 4 973 5 332
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 139 7 550 7 130 8 382 9 954 9 426 9 435
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 427 665 672 662 931 1 126 1 050
Property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 474 6 737 7 032 7 504 9 057 11 327 11 227
Other capital assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 167 1 494 1 796 2 019 2 574 2 002 2 595

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 840 23 562 24 589 26 925 31 304 32 677 32 714

Short-term loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 248 2 483 2 890 2 417 3 469 4 978 3 258
Other short-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 253 4 456 5 052 5 765 6 107 6 571 7 119
Long-term loans (including convertible loans) . . . . . . 2 875 2 681 1 989 1 940 3 769 4 443 6 517
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 085 4 163 4 461 5 213 5 564 6 189 6 777
Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 147 125 146 240 172 113
Shareholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 268 9 632 10 072 11 444 12 155 10 324 8 930

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . 22 840 23 562 24 589 26 925 31 304 32 677 32 714

Key figures (in percentages unless otherwise stated) *

Return on total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.9 7.7 8.8 11.9 7.7 1.9 – 2.1
Return on capital employed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12.2 12.2 14.3 20.0 12.7 3.0 – 3.5
Return on shareholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.8 8.1 10.1 14.0 7.3 – 10.3 – 15.3
Operating margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.4 9.0 10.0 12.3 8.3 2.2 – 2.4
Turnover of total assets, times . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.84 0.85 0.89 0.97 0.92 0.84 0.84
Share of risk-bearing capital. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 47 47 49 45 36 32
Solvency . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41 42 41 43 40 32 28
Loss/earnings per share, kronor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.30 6.65 8.80 13.65 7.70 – 10.40 – 13.20
Shareholders’ equity per share, kronor. . . . . . . . . . . 84 87 91 101 108 91 79

Investments and employees

Additions to property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . 1 010 1 126 1 119 1 290 1 589 1 778 1 121
Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124 122 88 76 98 129 140

Research and development expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . 343 398 414 465 534 538 473
Average number of employees at work* . . . . . . . . . . 41 997 43 693 43 331 46 667 49 305 45 285 46 672

Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 233 5 401 5 125 5 305 4 996 4 500 6 871
Number of employees registered at December 31. . . . 45 863 45 685 47 178 49 413 53 995 52 469 45 151
Salaries, wages and social charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 398 8 106 8 468 9 658 11 142 11 279 11 845

Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 118 1 230 1 318 1 438 1 519 1 488 2 377

Product areas **

Net sales
Bearings and seals ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 176 18 515 20 115 23 754 26 476 24 347 22 690
Tools . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 035 1 094 1 165 1 246 1 332 1 978 1 731
Special steels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – – – – 3 076
Other and eliminations ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 31 – 5 – 32 66 – 42 – 23 – 848

18 180 19 604 21 248 25 066 27 766 26 302 26 649

Loss/income after financial income and expense
Bearings and seals ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 129 1 073 1 399 2 399 1 709 – 135 – 1 264
Tools . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 157 111 142 127 40 – 103 – 117
Special steels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – – – – – 442
Other and eliminations ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 39 – 30 – 22 – 56 1 17 46

1 247 1 154 1 519 2 470 1 750 – 221 – 1 777

* For definitions, see note 1.
** Previously published amounts from 1986 through 1991 have been restated to conform to the current Group structure.



“A company’s quality awareness is re-
flected in the term ‘total quality’. Quality
efforts are the concern of all employees
in the company. Quality does not only
relate to measurable factors — it also
has to do with lifestyle.

Maintaining a high level of quality
development activity is assigned high
priority even during a recession. To
renounce this would be extremely haz-
ardous.”

Mauritz Sahlin, 
Group Chief Executive
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